
1 
 

 
STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 
 
 

SPECIAL Meeting 
Via Teleconference Wednesday, April 8, 2020, 10:00 a.m. 

 
Meeting Information: 

 
Topic: Board of Agriculture Meeting 
Time: Apr 8, 2020 10:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/3561826421 
 
Meeting ID: 356 182 6421 
 
One tap mobile 
+13462487799,,3561826421# US (Houston) 
+16699009128,,3561826421# US (San Jose) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 356 182 6421 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/atHjS38Hm 

 
 
 
 

All Board Members Will Attend Via Teleconference 

https://zoom.us/j/3561826421
https://zoom.us/u/atHjS38Hm


2 
 

 
AGENDA 

STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 
 
 
Wednesday, April 8, 2020            2800 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
10:00 a.m.     Oklahoma City, OK  73105 
        
 
 
 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call  
 
3. Declaration of a Quorum  
 
4. Introduction of Guests  
 
5. Consideration and Proposed Action on Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of March 4, 

2020. 
 
6. Consideration and Proposed Action on Division Reports  
 

A. Administrative Services – Dan Ridings 
Summary of present financial condition of the agency and monthly activities in the 
following areas: Finance, Human Resources, Fleet Management, Data Processing and 
Agriculture Law Enforcement Investigators.   
 

  B. Laboratory Services – Tanna Hartington 
   Summary of analytical activities, customer contacts, and other pertinent information 

related to laboratory operations. 
 

C. Forestry Services – Mark Goeller 
   Summary of activities and accomplishments in resource protection and rural fire 

defense, forest management and regeneration, water quality, urban forestry, forestry 
education and law enforcement.  Includes statistics on wildfires and law enforcement 
activity and narrative of forestry program highlights for the month. 

 
D. Consumer Protection Services – Kenny Naylor 
 Addresses stop sale orders on insect and disease infested crops, phytosanitary 

certificates issued, insect survey summaries, pesticide registration updates, pesticide 
inspections, seed program and seed laboratory updates, weights and measures reports, 
scanner inspections, grain warehouses and meetings attended by division personnel.  

 
 



3 
 

E. Animal Industry Services – Rod Hall, DVM 
 Addresses information and activities of staff related to control and eradication of 

animal diseases affecting livestock and livestock market audits.  It also addresses 
emergency response preparation and education for response to any outbreak of 
foreign, emerging and/or eradicated disease.  

 
 F.   Wildlife Services – Scott Alls 

   Summary of activities and accomplishments in wildlife damage management to 
protect state resources such as agriculture, property, natural resources, and public 
health and safety from wildlife damage and wildlife threats.  

 
  G. Agricultural Statistics – Troy Marshall  
   Addresses the current crop conditions and livestock inventory numbers.  Also 

included is a report on the number of information requests received, reports released 
during the previous month, reports to be released during the current month, and the 
meetings attended by Division personnel during the previous month. 

 
  H. Market Development Services – Meriruth Cohenour 

   Summary of the accomplishments, projects and events of Ag in the Classroom, 
Agritourism, Communications, Domestic Marketing (Made in Oklahoma, Made in 
Oklahoma Coalition), Diversified Marketing (Farmers Market, Specialty Crop Block 
Grants, Farm to School), International Marketing, Market News and Rural Economic 
Development. 

 
I. Agricultural Environmental Management Services – Teena Gunter 

Executive summary that addresses Swine Feeding Operations, registered poultry 
feeding operations and poultry waste applicators, National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES), plus agricultural composting facilities.  Includes 
numbers and statistics on complaint investigations, technical assistance contacts, 
inspections, enforcement/compliance activities and seminars/meetings attended by 
Division personnel for the month. 
 

J. Office of General Counsel – Teena Gunter 
Summarizes activities of the division and Commercial Pet Breeders, including rules, 
collections, legal research, meetings, support for programs, contracts, employment 
issues, open records requests, farming and ranching incorporations, and informal and 
formal enforcement actions before the Board, district court, and federal court. 
 

K. Food Safety Services – Scott Yates 
Addresses the inspection of meat, poultry, egg, and milk processing facilities to 
determine compliance with regulatory standards. 

 
L. Ag Communications and Outreach Update – Morgan Vance 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

7. Consideration and Proposed Action on Purchases/Contracts  
Professional Services Contract - $45,000.00 

 Professional Services for OSU Poultry Education Program - $48,276.00 
 Professional Services – FY21 to fund MOA with OWRB to sample LMFO - $170,000 
 Audio Visual Equipment - $10,500.00 
 OSU Pesticide Program Contract - $130,000.00 
 OSU Soil Fertility Research - $450,000.00 
 Unwanted Pesticide Disposal Program - $350,000.00 
 Ranch Scale Truck Bed - $30,000.00 
 Small Scales - $26,000.00 
 Verizon Wireless - $25,000.00 

Purchase of fifteen (15) Weight Sets for CPS field inspectors - $ 9600.00 
South Dakota Agricultural Laboratories testing fees for pesticide samples related to the 
new dicamba and 2,4D product - $9,800.00 
ESRI software maintenance contract for FY2021 to support GIS systems for the agency- 
$4,000.00 
OSU laboratory testing fees for soil and water samples related to environmental pollution 
investigations - $9,800.00 

 FY21 - $55,000 – Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses 
 FY20 - $9,500 – Purchase soil media to grow containerized seedlings 
 FY20 - $15,000 – Purchase the pouring of a concrete pad in existing pole barn 
 FY20 - $25,000 – Contract certified SRS cruisers from State of Alabama to complete FIA 

plots in Oklahoma 
 FY20 – 32 hotel rooms for Ag in the Classroom Teacher Road Trip - $6,910.00 
 Oklahoma viticulture and Enology Grants - $42,466.00 
 FY20 – Loklahoma – Billboard, social media and printing advertising - $20,000.00 
 FY20 – Made in Oklahoma bags for re-sale to MIO program participants - $6,000.00 
 FY20 – Ag in the Classroom Educational Resources for students - $5,550.66 
 Cooperative Service Agreement with USDA APHIS Wildlife Services - $769,000 
 ODAFF Wildlife Services purchase four (4) Kawasaki 4010 UTV’s - $39,500.00 
 Cooperative Agreement with City of Norman - $20,000.00 
  
 
8.  Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Stipulations  
 

Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
            Brian Cox, 2139 Union Grove Rd., Haworth Oklahoma 

Fong Moua, 465 Prairie Road, Garvin, Oklahoma 
Gene Shed, 1747 E. 135 Rd., Holdenville, Oklahoma 
 
Consumer Protection Services  
Advance Auto Parts, 4329 S. E. 29th, Del City, Oklahoma 
Clinton Abernathy, 21016 E. CR 165, Altus, Oklahoma  
Todd Harvey, Harvey Farms, LLC, 164, 4111 CR 1120, Hydro, Oklahoma  
Scott Roundebush, 20968 E. CR 1695, Altus, Oklahoma  
Sipcam Agro USA, Inc., 2525 Meridian PKWY, STE 350, Durham, North Carolina  

         U. S. Applicators, LLC, P. O. Box 563, Louisville, Mississippi 
Natalie Wheeler, 19900 E. CR 161, Altus, Oklahoma  

   



5 
 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  
As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 
 

 
9. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Consent Order 

 
Consumer Protection Services  
Pipeline Maintenance Service, 824 N.W. 3RD, Guymon, Oklahoma 

 
 
10. Consideration and Proposed Action on Emergency Rules 
 

CONSUMER PROTECTION 
Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
Chapter 30. Consumer Protection  
Subchapter 24 - Oklahoma Industrial Hemp Agricultural Pilot Program [AMENDED] 
35:30-24-1. Purpose [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-2. Definitions [AMENDED] 
35:30-24-3. Application [AMENDED] 
35:30-24-4. Grounds for denial of application [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-5. License [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-5.1 Land use restrictions [NEW] 
35:30-24-5.2 Restrictions on sale, transfer, and storage [NEW] 
35:30-24-5.3 Establishing records with USDA Farm Service Agency [NEW] 
35:30-24-6. Continuing obligation to provide information [AMENDED]   
35:30-24-6.1. Transportation [NEW] 
35:30-24-7. Fees [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-8. Certified Hemp seed program [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-9. Harvest reports [AMENDED]   
35:30-24-10. Records [AMENDED]   
35:30-24-11. Inspection and testing [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-12. Violations [AMENDED]  
35:30-24-13. Destruction [NEW] 
35:30-24-14. Hearings and contests [NEW] 

 
 
11. Next Board meeting scheduled for Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at Oklahoma City. 
 
12. Old Business 
 
13. New Business – Under the Open Meeting Act, this agenda item is authorized only for 

matters not known about or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the 
time of posting the agenda or any revised agenda. 

 
14. Adjournment 



1 
 

 
 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
OF THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND AGRICULTURE 
 
 

Chapel Acres 
Norman, Oklahoma 

March 4, 2020 
 
 The Oklahoma State Board of Agriculture met in regular session at 10:33 a.m., March 4, 2020, 
at Chapel Acres, Norman, Oklahoma. Written notice of this meeting was filed with the Secretary of 
State and posted on the Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry website.  A notice was posted 
on the door of the meeting room at Chapel Acres 24 hours prior to the meeting setting forth thereon 
the date, time, place and agenda for the meeting. 
 
 
 Members Present: Joe Farris 
  Ed Hurliman 
  Blayne Arthur 
  Jay Franklin 
 Karen Dodson 
 
 Others Present: Kandi Batts, Executive Secretary 
  Dan Ridings, Director, Administrative Services 
  Tanna Hartington, Director, Laboratory Services 
  Mark Goeller, Director, Forestry Services 
 Kenny Naylor, Director, Consumer Protection Services 
 Dr. Rod Hall, Director, Animal Industry Services 
 Scott Alls, Director, Wildlife Services 
 Troy Marshall, Director, Agricultural Statistics 
 Meriruth Cohenour, Director, Market Development Services 
 Caleb Whitcomb, Interim Director, Agricultural Environmental  
  Management Services 
 Teena Gunter, Director, Office of General Counsel 
 Scott Yates, Director, Food Safety Services 
 Morgan Vance, Communications 
 JanLee Rowlett, Legislative Liaison 
 James Rucker, Office of General Counsel 
 Kambi Maddy, Office of General Counsel 
 Emilie James, Communications Intern 
   
 
 
 Mrs. Arthur called the meeting to order and a quorum was declared. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 A motion was made by Ms. Dodson, seconded by Mr. Franklin, to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of February 5, 2020, as presented. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
 Farris Abstain 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 
     
 A motion was made by Mr. Franklin, seconded by Ms. Dodson, to approve the division reports 
as submitted. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris  Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Hurliman, seconded by Mr. Farris, to approve the following 
purchases/contracts as submitted and contained on pages 5 through 7. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris  Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 The motion carried. 
 
 A motion was made by Ms. Dodson, seconded by Mr. Farris, to approve the Proposed Action 
on Stipulations as submitted and contained on pages 8 and 9. 
 

Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
Dallas Lyons, 23788 MT. Pleasant Road, Howe, Oklahoma 
Roger Vongphakdy, 20326 E CR 1190, Stigler, Oklahoma  
Lance Wilson, 8161 E. 1515 Road, Calvin, Oklahoma 
 
Consumer Protection Services  
Johnson S C & Son, Inc., 1525 Howe Street, Racine, Wisconsin                                  

  
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris  Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 

 
**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  As 
authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding pursuant 
to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

 
 A motion was made by Mr. Franklin, seconded by Mr. Hurliman, to approve the following 
Administrative Law Judge as submitted and contained on pages 10 and 11. 
 

Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
Jeffrey Croswhite, 1250 E. Adobe Road, Newkirk, Oklahoma 

 
 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Franklin, seconded by Mr. Farris, to discuss the Proposed Action 
on Dollar General Corporation in Executive Session. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 
 
 The Board moved into Executive Session.  No votes were taken during Executive Session. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 A motion was made by Mr. Franklin, seconded by Ms. Dodson, to reconvene into open 
session.  The Board recommends to contact the corporate headquarters of Dollar General, visit with 
other states if they are having similar issues, and find out what remedies to apply here in the state of 
Oklahoma. 
 
 Dollar General Corporation, Goodlettsville, Tennessee 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
   Farris Aye 
 Hurliman Aye 
 Arthur  Aye 
 Franklin Aye 
  Dodson Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 

 
 **Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present): As 
authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act at 25 O.S. §307(B)(4), an executive session may be 
held for the purpose of “[c]onfidential communications between a public body and its attorney 
concerning a pending investigation, claim, or action if the public body, with the advice of its attorney, 
determines that disclosure will seriously impair the ability of the public body to process the claim or 
conduct a pending investigation, litigation, or proceeding in the public interest.” to meet with ODAFF 
attorneys and discuss potential filing of a new lawsuit against Dollar General Corporation. 

 
 There are no Old business presented for the Board to take action upon.  Ms. Dodson moved, 
Mr. Hurliman seconded, that the meeting be adjourned at 12:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 By  
 President 
 
 
 ATTEST:  
      Executive Secretary 



5 
 

MARCH 4, 2020 BOARD MEETING 
 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 

 

Consumer Protection Services 
Ranch Scale Truck Request --$55,000.00 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for 

approval. 
ODAFF CPS currently has a 15-year-old ranch scale vehicles that has broken down and needs 
replaced.  The loss of this truck will affect our ability to complete the testing of ranch scales in 
Oklahoma. 
 

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
This vehicle is needed to be able to complete our inspections its loss will affect our ability to test 
ranch scales. 
 

GIS Programing with Oklahoma University --$42,000.00 
 

1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for 
approval. 

 
GIS programing would provide ODAFF with the ability to GPS hemp grower fields to provide 
required data to USDA.  It also will allow us to do a better job of collecting and reporting our 
USDA CAPS survey information under our grant programs.  Finally it will assist us in 
collecting information on complaints, inspections and licensee’s.    
 

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
 
Without the GIS programming we will have more difficulty meeting USDA hemp reporting 
requirements and CAPS reporting requirements.  This will also limit our efficiency in sampling, 
trapping and inspections.  
 

Vehicles --$49,000.00 
 

1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for 
approval. 

 
ODAFF CPS currently has high mileage vehicles that are at 200,000 miles and this request is 
to replace 2 of those vehicles.  Due to their high mileage they are prone to breaking down and 
are expensive to fix in comparison to their value.  This also creates down time for the 
inspection staff preventing them from being able to complete their work. 
 

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
 
These vehicles are needed to be able to complete our inspections and sampling activities. 

 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

Oklahoma State University Ag Conference Services Contract Approval --$50,000.00 
 

1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for 
approval. 

 
Under ODAFF’s EPA delegated authority we are required to host their Region 6 training every 5th 
year.  The 2020 fiscal year is ODAFF’s year to host the meeting.  ODAFF is provided $50,000.00 
in our EPA grant for hosting the training in Oklahoma.  
 

 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   

 
Currently, ODAFF does not have the resources and personnel to host the training.  The loss of 
OSU’s Ag Conferences’ assistance would place a great strain on ODAFF’s limited resources to 
meet the requirements of the EPA grant.  Additionally, failure to complete the grants 
requirement could cause us to lose grant money and affect our delegated authority from EPA. 
 
 

Market Development  
FY 2020 – Ag Enhancement and Diversification Grant – Robert Horton – strawberries - 
$9,000.00 
 
FY2020 – Fancy Food Show – Six booths and signage will be purchased then sublet to Made 
in Oklahoma companies at a cost share rate. This is part of the STEP Grant in partnership with 
Oklahoma Department of Commerce and $24,000 will be reimbursed to ODAFF. - $30,000.00 
The Summer Fancy Food Show is the largest specialty food industry event in North America and 
the premier showcase for industry innovation. It is the place to see and taste the future of food. 
Exhibiting at a Fancy Food Show is the most convenient and cost-effective way for Made in 
Oklahoma companies to connect with buyers from every major food and beverage buying channel 
in the U.S. and abroad. This show is part of the STEP Grant in partnership with the Oklahoma 
Department of Commerce and $24,000 will be reimbursed to ODAFF. If this proposed expense is 
not approved, MIO companies will not be able to connect with buyers in other states and 
internationally therefore losing sales that will impact the companies and state economically.  

FY2020 – Bob Howard Chrysler Jeep Dodge – vehicle for Ag in the Classroom Coordinator, 
Audrey Harmon - $18,798.00 
 
FY2020 – Oklahoma State University - Viticulture and Enologist Extension Specialist - $70,000.00 
This project is entirely funded by the Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Center Development 
Revolving Fund. This employee will coordinate an annual grape management course, create online 
grape management and wine making classes, write grant applications and research vineyard and 
viticulture projects as needed. The employee will also assist grape growers and wine makers 
through field days, correspondence and site visits. If this proposed expense is not approved and 
therefore the project is not completed, the State not only loses money immediately that is 
important to the grape and wine industry through the economic impact, but also runs the risk of not 
being awarded money from the Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Center Development 
Revolving Fund in the future.  

 



7 
 

FY 2021 – Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority – Tulsa State Fair - Booth space will be 
purchased then sublet to Made in Oklahoma companies at a cost share rate - $25,416.00 

Tulsa State Fair – MIO Booth Spaces - $25,416.00 
ODAFF contracts with the Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority for the purpose of providing a 
Made in Oklahoma Exhibit in the Exchange Center during the Tulsa State Fair. ODAFF sublets 
booth spaces within this exhibit area to MIO companies. The MIO Exhibit at the Tulsa State Fair is 
a rare opportunity for new MIO companies to introduce their products to an average of over 1 
million potential customers. The average number of companies impacted each year is between 30-
35 companies. The event falls within the purpose of the MIO Program which is to assist local 
agricultural companies in collectively promoting brand awareness and consumer loyalty for 
Oklahoma products through cooperative marketing activities. If this proposed expense is not 
approved, there will not be a labeled MIO exhibit at the Tulsa State Fair. The economic impact to 
the MIO companies intending to participate in this Exhibit will potentially lose thousands of 
dollars in sales during the 11-day event held each year. 

 



8



9



10



A-1



A-2



A-3



A-4



A-5



 
B1 

 
 

MAY 2020 BOARD REPORT 
AGRICULTURE LABORATORY SERVICES 

(February 2020 Activities) 
 
 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT SECTION: (Taryn Hurley, Quality Manager) 
 
The routine distribution of quality control samples to respective sections of the Laboratory 
continued.  Collection and submission of data to the respective study groups for statistical 
analysis was conducted. 
 
Performance Test Logs for February 2020:   
    

General Chemistry 
PT Samples Received 3 
Number of Analytes 20 
PT Samples Reported 2 
Number of Analytes Reported 26 
Completed PT Reports 2 
Number of Analytes Passed 7 
Number of Analytes Failed 1 

 
Inorganic 

PT Samples Received 1 
Number of Analytes 12 
PT Samples Reported 0 
Number of Analytes Reported 0 
Completed PT Reports 0 
Number of Analytes Passed 0 
Number of Analytes Failed 0 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lab Wide PT Performance to Date: 
 

 
 
In February,  
 The Quality Manager attended the 

Manufactured Food Regulatory 
Program Alliance and Association of 
Food and Drug Officials Laboratory 
Accreditation 2020 meeting.  

 The annual ethics training for the 
Laboratory was initiated, and saw 
just under 70% completion within 
two weeks of initiation.  

 The annual internal audit of the Food 
and Dairy Section was conducted.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
B2 

 
 

INORGANIC SECTION: (Elena Lyon, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV) 
 
The Section is working on method verification on the new instrumentation. 
    

Inorganic Sample Breakdown 
Customer Samples Determinations 

OCC 119 1,071 
LMFO 8 48 
Total 127 1,119 

  

 
 

  
 
 
DAIRY/FOOD SAFETY SECTION: (Sharon Swyear, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
The Section completed routine dairy analysis to satisfy the four antibiotic tests required within a 
six month period by the FDA for in-state dairies.  This month, the inspectors that typically 
deliver samples attended training so there were only three weeks of sampling instead of the usual 
four.  There were no antibiotic violations discovered during this time.      

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Total Determinations

CY 20

CY 19 

CY 18

 
 



 
B3 

 
 

SEED SECTION: (Wade Krivanek, State Seed Program Administrator) 

Records for February show a total of 170 seed samples were received for analysis.  Crops tested 
included, soybeans, hybrid corn, hybrid grain and forage sorghum as well as early summer 
grasses.  Germination and purity quality for all summer crop seed has checked out well so far.    

The Oklahoma Seed Trade Association (OSTA) held their annual meeting on February 12th in 
Edmond.  The primary discussion at the meeting involved the future of the OSTA as an 
organization.  Over the last several years’ membership and attendance have begun to diminish 
due to consolidations of the seed industry.  As the situation worsens, the OSTA Board of 
Directors are now recommending that the association be disbanded and membership become a 
part of the Oklahoma Ag Retailers Association.  It was decided that the association will run until 
September of this year after which the Board will meet again to discuss and decide the future of 
the organization.       
 
SEROLOGY SECTION: (Pete Bourns, Clinical/Laboratory Scientist IV)  
 

 

Revenue Breakdown      

$10,340.00

$2,134.00

$13,871.00

Actual Invoiced

Billed by I.L.

Other

Unbilled

 

 

Dairy Farms

76

0

29

Completed In-house
Completed Out of State
Not Completed



 
B4 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GENERAL CHEMISTRY SECTION: (Jennifer Busey, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
The Section has been working diligently to report out the last few samples of the winter feed 
rush and is anticipating the upcoming fertilizer season.   
   
 

 Feed Fertilizer Lime Total 

Samples Received 200 32 3 235 

Samples Completed 237 12 0 249 

Determinations 1069 40 0 1109 

Violations 101 8 0 109 

Violation % 9.45% 20.00% 0.00% 9.83% 
 
 
 
 
PESTICIDE SECTION:  (Lauren Cameron, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV)     
 
During February, the Section Supervisor attended the HRDS class, “Leading Employees 
Through Change” and training given by EPA Region 6 over Quality Assurance Project Planning.  
 
Pesticide Section by the numbers: 
 

 Number Test Det Average TAT (days)  
Average Residue 

Turnaround Time: 20 
Average Formulations 
Turnaround Time: 76 

Average Hemp 
Turnaround Time: 12 

Formulation Conc. 21 41 44 70  
Form. Tank Mix 3 6 11 101  

Residue Soil 5 5 11 15  
Residue Swab 2 2 6 24  
Residue Water 1 2 20 125  
Service Sample 1 1 1 3  

Hemp 2 2 2 12  
 

3-year Summary of Samples Analyzed 
Year Brucellosis Pseudorabies E.I.A. 
2020 880 673 2 
2019 1,015 472 7 
2018 1,250 774 44 



 
B5 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Determinations the Section completed by month: 
 

 
 
 
Samples the Section received by month: 
 

 

 
 
 

Totals  
# of Samples # of Tests # of Determinations 

36 60 97 

  



 
B6 

 
 

OKLAHOMA BUREAU OF STANDARDS: (Jeremy Nading, State Metrologist)  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Summary of work completed:  

  
  

 

 # Fees % of Fees # Standards % of Standards 
Out-of-State Customers 0 $0.00 0% 0 0% 

In-State Customers 1 $1,638.00 100% 278 100% 
Totals 1 $1,638.00 100% 278 100% 



 
B7 

 
 

The annual calibrations of the Bureau’s internal standards were completed in February.  
 
Amanda Kramer, Metrologist I, attended the NIST OWM Fundamentals of Metrology Seminar. 
She has started on the required follow-up Laboratory Auditing Problems (LAP) associated with 
this training and has a year to complete them. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 

 
Tanna Hartington 
Director, Laboratory Services Division  



FEED SAMPLES 237
FEED DETERMINATIONS 1069
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 101

FERTILIZER SAMPLES 12
FERTILIZER DETERMINATIONS 40
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 8

LIME SAMPLES 0
LIME DETERMINATIONS 0
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

PESTICIDE SAMPLES 36
PESTICIDE DETERMINATIONS 97

INORGANIC LAB SAMPLES 127
DETERMINATIONS 1119

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. SAMPLES 1555
STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. DETERMINATIONS 1780
NUMBER POSITIVES 0

SEED SAMPLES 165
SEED DETERMINATIONS 190
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

BUREAU OF STANDARDS CERTIFICATES 43
NUMBER OF STANDARDS CALIBRATED 278
FEE CHARGES $1,638.00

DAIRY AND FOOD SAFETY SAMPLES 385
DAIRY AND FOOD SAFETY DETERMINATIONS 838
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 11

TOTAL SAMPLES 2560
TOTAL DETERMINATIONS 5411
TOTAL POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 120

BOARD REPORT
LABORATORY SERVICES DIVISION

FEBRUARY 2020 ACTIVITIES

B8



C-1 
 

MARCH 2020 
 

OKLAHOMA FORESTRY SERVICES BOARD REPORT 
 

Serving people by conserving, enhancing and protecting our lands and forest resources 

 
. 
MARCH HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Oklahoma Arbor Week Kickoff Celebration 
 
Oklahoma communities, campuses and utilities companies were recently recognized for their commitment to greener 
environments by Oklahoma Forestry Services and the Community Forestry Council.  These 38 organizations earned national 
designations from the Arbor Day Foundation by accomplishing specific criteria related to planting and caring for trees, 
woodlands and forests in their communities and on campuses.  The annual celebration took place at Oklahoma City University 
(OCU) to kickoff Oklahoma’s Arbor Week, which is observed the last week of March each year.   

 
WILDFIRE RESPONSE 
 
 
Fire Operations 
Response to wildfire through the month of February 
remained well below five and ten year averages but in line 
with the seasonal outlook issued by OFS in November 2019.   
 
Year-to-Date Forestry Services has responded to 
approximately 60% of its annual average number of wildfires.  
March is statistically the month that presents the greatest 
number of wildfires in Oklahoma and very often the most 
acres burned.  While March is not over, OFS has responded 
to 110 new wildfires that burned 42,698.1 acres in the six-
day period March 5th through March 10th.  Notable wildfires 
included the 412 Fire in Beaver County which covered 29,168 
acres, stretching over 17 miles and destroyed seven homes 
and several outbuildings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Forest Heritage Center Museum and building were closed to the public on March 22 in an effort to help slow the spread 
of COVID-19, following the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department’s decision to close all state park lodges, gift shops 
and nature centers until further notice. 
  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mark Goeller 
Director/State Forester 

February 2020 Fire Response Fires Acres 
2020 Wildfires Year-to-Date 105 6,594 
   
OFS Protection Area 90 3,438 
5-Year Average 147 14,030 
10-Year Average 125 11,082 
Protection Area YTD 90 3,438 
   
OFS Response Outside Protection Area 3 1,,473 
OFS Response Outside Protection Area 
YTD 

8 2,841 

   
Fire Department Reports 3 8 
Fire Department Reports YTD 7 314 
   
Prescribed Burns - SE 8 496 

Prescribed Burns - EC 9 977 
Prescribed Burns - NE 1 105 
Prescribed Burns - OKOKS 0 0 
Prescribed Burns - YTD 18 1,578 



D-1 
 

APRIL 8, 2020 BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSUMER PROTECTION SERVICES DIVISION  
 

REPORT FOR JANUARY/FEBRUARY/MARCH 2020 
 
 
PESTICIDE SECTION 
 
Pesticide Registration Activity 

Pesticide registrations for January 2020-March 2020 are in the following chart. A total of 4361 
products were registered, of the products registered 3968 were renewals and 393 were new. 
There were 358 products cancelled.   

   
 
Pesticide Samples 
 
Pesticide samples taken January-February 2020 are in the following chart. A total of 25 Residue, 
23 Concentrate, and 2 Tank Mix samples were taken.     
 

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000 4,361 3,968

393
358

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
tr

at
io

ns

Type of Registration

PESTICIDE REGISTRATION ACTIVITY FOR 
JANUARY 2020 - MARCH 2020



D-2 
 

Table 1. Inspection Count for January - February 2020*  
  Number of Inspections 

Inspection Type January February Two Month Total 
Experimental Use Permit 0 0 0 
Marketplace 79 47 126 
Pesticide Applicator Facility 40 55 95 
Pesticide Service Inspection 0 0 0 
Restricted Use Pesticide Dealer 38 21 59 
Container Containment 
Inspection 0 0 0 

Producer Establishment 0 0 0 
Use 48 56 104 
Termite 0 1 1 
Wood 0 0 0 
Pre-treat 4 1 5 
Drift Investigation 0 0 0 
Pesticide Label 6050 3097 9147 
Worker Protection 0 3 3 

Total 6259 3281 9540 
* Inspections not yet submitted at the time of this report will be reflected in the next board report 

    
Along with the above inspections, CPS field inspectors also took 22 non-agriculture use samples, 
5 agriculture use samples and 22 market place samples for a total of 49 samples.  The inspectors 
also participated in 6 certification and training activities.  These activities include inspector 
training, CEU meetings, test sessions, pesticide applicator training and speaking at meetings. 
 
 
Pesticide Complaint Summary 

PESTICIDE COMPLAINTS   January 17, 2020 – February 19, 2020   

  RECEIVED CLOSED WARNINGS ISSUED NO ACTION 

CONSUMER GENERATED 6 7 3 4 

MUSK THISTLE  0 0   

CASES REFERRED TO OGC: 3 
  

  

 

 

 



D-3 
 

Board Report – Pesticide Testing 

 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE AND HORTICULTURE SECTION 
 
 
Plant Protection Program 
 
Federal Phytosanitary Certificates Issued from February 15 – March 20, 2020 

Commercial value of shipment $1,250 or more: 
    24 Federal Phytosanitary certificates issued @ $106.00 each 
Commercial value of shipment less than $1,250: 
         3 Federal Phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $61.00 each 
 

 



D-4 
 

State Phytosanitary Certificates Issued from February 15, 2020 – March 20, 2020 
79 Phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $20 each 
 

 
 
 

Industrial Hemp Program 
 
 
On February 28, 2020, Caroline Nelson, Hemp Program 
Administrator presented at the 2020 Oklahoma Hemp Summit in 
Shawnee.  This event was a great networking opportunity. It 
provided her with the opportunity to meet local farmers and those 
who are interested in growing hemp.  

Continuously through the month of February, Caroline worked on 
approving new hemp licenses and renewing hemp licenses from 
last year.  Part of the renewal process is confirming that all 2019 
fees have been paid before a 2020 hemp grower license will be 
issued.  

 

2020 Hemp Licenses 

Month New Licenses Issues Renewals Total Licenses 
Issued 

January 5 10 15 
February  11 7 18 
Yearly Total 16 17 33 

 

 

 
Figure 1: 2020 Hemp Summit in 
Shawnee 



D-5 
 

Environmental Program 

On February 18, 2020, ODAFF received a phone call from Wilson Weed Control for a pesticide 
spill due to a rollover accident south of Fairview in Major County. The total pesticide spill was a 
200-gallon tank mix containing one gallon of Plainview SC (EPA Registration number 432-
1606).  The CPS field inspector conducted an on-site investigation and collected one 
representative soil sample at the spill site. Pesticide Analysis Report provided by ODAFF 
laboratory concluded the pesticide residue level of 35.9 ppm imazapry in soil.  Due to the nature 
of the rollover accident possibly containing diesel or fuel fluids, IMMIX Environmental a DEQ 
licensed highway remediator, performed the site cleanup.  After soil excavation, another soil 
sample was collected and analyzed with 2 ppm residue level of Imazapry.   

 

AGRICULTURE RESOURCE SECTION 

Weights & Measures Program  

The large capacity scale technicians inspected 44 vehicle scales and 5 platform scales.  

Inspectors will be checking Ranch Scales from the end of March running through April.  

Weights & Measures inspectors checked a total of 1132 small scales and 16 platform scales 
during this period, 32 was rejected. There were 30 random pack inspections and 49 standard 
pack inspections, 2 received letters of warning. Additionally, 91 price verification inspections 
were conducted with 1 of these received letters of warning.   

 
Feed Program 
 
Program Performance 
 
During this reporting period there were a total of 232 official feed samples analyzed, with 1037 
feed determinations made from these samples.  These determinations resulted in the issuance of 
20 violations for feeds or feed ingredients that did not meet established tolerances based on their 
guaranteed analysis.  The majority of these violations were issued for products deficient in Crude 
Protein. Violations were also issued for feed products that did not meet their guarantees for 
Vitamin A, Calcium, Salt, Phosphorus Crude Fat, and Zinc. Eleven stop sale orders were issued 
for feed products with severe deviations from their guaranteed analysis. Seven stops sales were 
issued for products deficient in Vitamin A, two stop sales were issued for products deficient in 
Crude Protein, one stop sales issued for products deficient in Copper, and one stop sale was 
issued for a product deficient in Calcium. 
  
The following tables show a two month comparison of label violations and stop sale orders 
issued by the Department for feed products that did not meet their guaranteed analysis.   
 
 



D-6 
 

 
Table 1. Feed Notice of Label Violation Summary January 2020 – February 2020 
 Number of Label Violations 
Nutritional Guarantee January 1 February  2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 13 11 24 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 5 4 9 
Crude Fiber 1 0 1 
Calcium 0 1 1 
Phosphorus 0 1 1 
Salt 1 1 2 
Manganese 1 0 1 
Potassium 0 0 0 
Copper 2 0 2 
Zinc 1 1 2 
Vitamin A 2 1 3 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 26 20 46 
1 309 feed samples analyzed with 1465 determinations 2 232 feed samples analyzed with 1037 determinations  

 
 
 
 
Table 2. Feed Stop Sale Summary January 2020 – February 2020 
 Number of Stop Sales 
Nutritional Guarantee January 1 February 2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 3 2 5 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 0 0 0 
Crude Fiber 0 0 0 
Calcium 1 1 2 
Phosphorus 0 0 0 
Salt 2 0 2 
Manganese 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 0 0 
Copper 0 1 1 
Zinc 0 0 0 
Vitamin A 3 7 10 
Sugar 0 0 0 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 9 11 20 
1 309 feed samples analyzed with 1465 determinations 2 232 feed samples analyzed with 1037 determinations  

 
 
 

 



D-7 
 

Fertilizer Program  
 
Program Performance 

REPORTING PERIOD FEBRUARY 8, 2020 THROUGH MARCH 13, 2020 

 

Item 

 

Number 

Notice of 
Deficiency 

Letter of 
Warning 

Stop 
Sale 

Samples 
Deficient 

 

Misc 

Fertilizer Samples 88    1  

Lime Samples 6      

Dry Fertilizer Facility 
Inspections 

 

4 

 

 

 

 

   

Liquid Fertilizer 
Facility Inspections 

 

5 

 

1 

 

2 

   

Turf Applicator 
Inspections 

 

 

 

 

    

Ammonium Nitrate 
Audits 

 

1 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Dealers 

 

17 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Storage Tank 
Inspections 

 

26 

     

Anhydrous Ammonia 
Nurse Tank Inspections 

 

330 

   

 

  

Pre Site Facility 
Inspections 

      

 

2020 AAPFCO Winter Annual Meeting 
 
Lance Kunneman, CPS Fertilizer Program Administrator, attended the Association of American 
Plant Food Control Officials (AAPFCO) winter annual meeting.  The meeting was held in New 
Orleans, LA on February 16th through February 19th.  AAPFCO provides a forum for state 
fertilizer control officials and fertilizer industry representatives to discuss regulatory policies. 



D-8 
 

  
The Long Range Planning Committee meeting was held on Sunday where the Long Range 
Strategic Plan was reviewed.  Goals and actions were developed to carry-out the plan.  After the 
Long Range meeting Kunneman facilitated a closed session meeting of control officials “only”; 
giving an opportunity for discussion without industry representatives. 
 
The AAPFCO meeting was called to order on Monday and after taking roll call, twenty-five 
states and Canada were represented by forty-two control officials along with 150 industry 
representatives.  Dr. Mike Strain DVM, Louisiana Commissioner of Agriculture, welcomed 
everyone to New Orleans and shared some of the local history and background.  The winter 
annual business voting session was held with fourteen items voted to official. Nine items were 
voted to tentative status.  One definition was voted to be deleted.  After a short break, the Terms 
and Definitions Committee meeting was called to order to discuss items to be presented to the 
Board for membership action.   
 
On Tuesday morning Kunneman attended the Education and Information Committee meeting 
and Best Management Practices committee meeting. The afternoon consisted of the Uniform 
Bills Committee meeting and Environmental Affairs committee meeting. 

Kunneman, as immediate past president, attended the board meeting on Wednesday morning 
addressing business decisions of AAPFCO. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
I will be glad to answer any questions from the Board members. 

     
   Kenny M. Naylor 



 E - 1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
Animal Industry Services Board Report 

April 8, 2020 
Activities February 8, 2019 – March 20, 2020 

 
Animal Disease Traceability: 
During this time period, we have begun to receive the free Low Frequency EID tags from 
USDA. We are in the process of filling orders and shipping tags to requesting 
veterinarians and producers. We will have the opportunity to apply for supplemental 
funding for the upcoming Cooperative Agreement period that can be used to purchase 
additional EID reading equipment like wands or panel readers but also for tag applicators. 
The tags that we have received are from DataMars and require specific tag applicators in 
order for the tags to be placed and retained within the ear properly. It would be desirable 
to distribute a set of tag applicators with every tag order received to have confidence the 
tags are being placed properly and will be maintained for the life of the animal. Dr. 
Gorczyca plans on developing a grant proposal to accomplish this as well as try to 
purchase additional reading equipment to build the infrastructure necessary to 
accommodate electronic identification.    
 
During this time period, we have completed our required trace exercises to meet the 
Cooperative Agreement quotas in order to maintain grant funding. 
 
Aquaculture:   
No activity of note during this time period. 
 
Biologics: 
During this time period, biological product renewals were sent out automatically through 
the Kelly Registry System. Biological products expire March 20th of each year. 
Companies needing to renew products were given the option this year of renewing online 
through the Kelly System or mailing in renewal forms with payment. There is an 
additional fee for a company to renew online however the efficiency of using the Kelly 
System allows for timelier issuance of approved biological product permits.  
  
Cattle Programs: 

Brucellosis: 
We have no active Brucellosis cases at this time. 
 
The only remaining reservoir of B abortus in the U.S. is in elk and bison in the Greater 
Yellowstone Park area.  Those states have Designated Surveillance Areas, where the 
disease in wildlife occasionally spills over into domestic cattle and bison.  
 
While there is very little need to test for B abortus any longer, this means we have very 
little or no surveillance for Brucella suis or Swine Brucellosis which currently infects 
approximately 20% of the feral swine that our Wildlife Services personnel test.  B suis 
can, and does, infect cattle.  I fear this could lead to an increase in the number of human 
cases of B suis. 



 E - 2 

Tuberculosis: 
We now have three active TB cases.  The first is the dairy in the Panhandle that receives 
heifers from a calf raiser in Texas that received calves from a heavily infected dairy in the 
Texas Panhandle that was discovered to be infected in December 2018.  We are 
coordinating with the dairy management and Regulatory Officials in Texas and Kansas to 
test all the cattle on the four premises at the same time.  AIS Field Staff and USDA 
personnel performed the second complete herd test the week of October 14-21.  No 
animals were found to be infected.  We will be conducting the next herd test in October. 
 
The second involves a beef herd in Cimarron County that culled a group of cows to 
slaughter November 19.  At the plant one of them was discovered to be infected with TB.  
The herd was quarantined on November 29 and we began compiling epidemiological 
information.  The cow was purchased from a ranch in Texas in 2011.  The good thing is 
this herd does not sell any breeding animals.  All adults are culled to go to slaughter and 
their calves are fed to be slaughtered as fat cattle.  So our trace forwards will be relatively 
simple.  They do purchase replacement cows as needed from a livestock dealer.  We 
suspect this person buys cattle from multiple locations and will not have records that 
enable us to find all the possible sources of infection.  The portion of the herd we tested 
in January did not reveal any infected cattle.  There are two more portions of the herd that 
will be tested later.  The herds with fence line contact to the group the infected cow came 
from will be tested the week of March 30. 
 
The third is a dairy herd has received cattle from a herd in Texas that sold a cull cow that 
tested positive on January 30.  The Texas portion of the herd has 125 cows and calves 
that are scheduled to be euthanized and necropsied the week of March 30.  Following that 
we will have a better idea how our portion of the herd will be affected.  Secretary Arthur, 
Dr. Mikka Larssen, Vicki Ernsting, and I met with the herd management February 11 to 
begin gathering information on numbers of cattle and movements. 
 
Our State and Federal Field Veterinarians follow up on suspect screening tests by private 
veterinarians by conducting confirmatory tests.  On February 24, Dr. Gorczyca performed 
comparative cervical TB testing in 3 goats and 1 sheep at the OKC Zoo. This was 
baseline testing for the newly acquired herd. All four animals were confirmed negative.  
 

Trichomoniasis: 
During this time period, 3003 Oklahoma bulls were tested and four positive bulls were 
discovered.  Dr. Proctor contacts the owners of positive bulls and their veterinarians to 
follow up and offer advice about control and eradication of the disease, and to answer 
questions about the disease and our regulations.   
 



 E - 3 

 
 
Our current statistics compare to 2.1% positive bulls in 2011, 1.4% in 2012, 1.3% in 
2013, 1.4% in 2014, 1.1% in 2015, 1.1% in 2016, 0.5% in 2017, 0.32% in 2018, and 
0.42% in 2019. 
 

Johne’s Disease: 
YTD numbers in 2020 are a total of 28 positive reports, 24 new premises with 4 
previously identified infected premises.  2019 YTD were a total of 25 positive reports 
with 15 new premises and 10 previously identified infected premises.  
 
For this reporting period we have received 17 total positive reports, 14 are new identified 
premises and 3 previously identified premises.  In 2019 we received 13 positive reports, 9 
new premises and 4 previous 
.    
Dr. Stone continues to educate owners of infected animals on strategies to test, control 
and hopefully to eliminate the disease.  
 
Emergency Management: 
On February 20, Drs. Gorczyca and Ruby met with Dr. LeMac’ Morris, the State Public 
Health Veterinarian to discuss reporting responsibilities of zoonotic diseases, canine 
brucellosis, and finally to discuss public messaging for Salmonella awareness associated 
with young chicks.  
 
On February 24, we held a FMD Emergency Vaccination Annex and functional exercise 
planning meeting. Jimmy Wortham and Dr. Leslie Cole facilitated the meeting.   
 
On March 5, Drs. Gorczyca and Ruby along with Inspector Joe Emberson met with the 
OSDH SNS warehouse team to tour the SNS warehouse in Oklahoma City. This 

 



 E - 4 

warehouse will be used during the National Veterinary Stockpile full scale exercise in 
August.  
 
On March 5, Drs. Gorczyca and Ruby attended a State Liaison Coronavirus Preparedness 
meeting at the State Emergency Operations Center. This meeting was held to discuss 
preparedness efforts by the OSDH in the face of a coronavirus outbreak within the state 
and how the state agencies can support OSDH with their response. The first Oklahoman 
confirmed with COVID-19 was on March 6. To date, there are currently 164 Oklahomans 
with COVID-19 and unfortunately, the disease has been attributed to the death of five 
individuals. OSDH is in critical need of PPE and testing supplies to be used by their 
public health responders due to a nationwide shortage of these items. We received a 
request for PPE on March 20 and provided OSDH with the following PPE from our 
inventory:  27 boxes of Tyvek coveralls, 44 boxes of Tychem coveralls, 1 box of 
biosecurity PPE kits, 30 N95 respirator masks, 3 boxes of shoe covers, 1 box of surgical 
bonnets, 5 PAPR units, and 900 swabs for taking samples.  
 
During this time period, Drs. Gorczyca and Ruby updated the ODAFF Continuity of 
Operations Plan to include a pandemic outbreak annex in response to the COVID-19 
outbreak worldwide.  
 
The Secure Beef Supply Regional Planning Workshop was held March 10-11 in 
Brighton, CO. Drs. Gorczyca,and Ruby, Morgan Vance, and I attended the workshop. 
This meeting brought together state and federal partners as well as representatives from 
the packing industry and from feeding operations from OK, KS, CO, TX, MO, and NE to 
discuss Secure Beef Supply planning, continuity of the beef industry during a FMD 
outbreak and regional permitting. 
 
We have taken possession of an Oklahoma Homeland Security Decontamination Trailer.  
There are six of these units in the state.  The trailer is a self-contained, mobile, high-
volume, hot or cold water, cleaning and disinfection power washer.  The unit also has a 
large generator to operate lights and other electrical equipment.  This trailer has not been 
operated in a few years, so we are in the process of doing some minor repairs, and should 
have it completely operational soon. 
 
Equine Programs: 
There are no new equine cases for EIA, Piroplasmosis or CEM during this period. 
 
The two remaining quarantined horses from Remington park EHV outbreak continue to 
be monitored at the owner’s home.  The one horse who had continued to test positive 
since December 10 had a negative test result on March 23rd.  The horse it is quarantined 
with has been testing negative since the middle of February. Retesting will be done the 
week of March 30th.  The quarantine can be released after 2 negative tests at least 7 days 
apart.  
 
 
 



 E - 5 

Farmed Cervidae Programs: 
On January 31 and February 1 Dr. Stone and Dr. Proctor attended the North American 
Elk Breeders and the Whitetails of Oklahoma meeting in Tulsa.  They gathered 
information the industry considers important to their programs, and Drs. Stone and 
Proctor made connections with members and breeders in our state as well as visiting with 
a member of the legislature. 
 
Feral Swine: 
There were no significant changes in the feral swine program during this time period. 
 
Foreign Animal Disease: 
On February 16 I flew to St. Paul, MN where I met with Animal Health officials from the 
top 14 swine production states.  Our goal is to achieve consensus on regulations between 
states to make it simpler for the swine companies to understand the requirements to move 
swine between states. 
 
The virulent Newcastle Disease outbreak in the northeastern suburbs of Los Angeles, CA 
continues to be a thorn in the side of California Department of Agriculture.  It is not 
widespread but because it’s in an urban area they are having a lot of difficulty eradicating 
the disease. 
  
African Swine Fever continues to spread around the world.  We have never had a case of 
ASF in the United States.  The commercial swine industry and regulatory veterinary 
agencies are very concerned about the situation.  It is estimated that more than half the 
swine in the world have died or been euthanized because of the disease.  
 
We performed two FAD investigations during this time frame.  One was a horse with 
vesicular type lesions in the mouth in Oklahoma County and the other was in a swine 
herd in Alfalfa County that had experienced a high death loss over a period of time.  
Thankfully no FADs were discovered in the investigations. 
 
Livestock Market Audits: 
During this period, staff has approved an application for registration for Western 
Oklahoma Livestock Market. This market, located in the on I40 east of Clinton, is owned 
and operated by Brandon and Erin Hickey. The Hickey’s are also the owners of the Elk 
City Livestock Auction. Their new barn in Clinton held its first sale on March 16 and 
plans to operate a weekly Monday livestock auction.  
 
Although no other new licenses were applied for during this time, two individuals 
requested livestock market packets as they contemplate market ownership. 
  
During this period as well, numerous custodial account audits were performed at different 
livestock auctions, all resulting in no violations. 
 

 
 



 E - 6 

Livestock Auction Market Activities 
   Auction market licenses issued      0 
  Auction market licenses pending  0 
   Market custodial audits completed       4 
   Auction market complaints investigated     0 
  Fines collected    0 
   Livestock Markets with Legal Action     0  
   Special Audits (Market Development) 0 
 
Outreach: 
On February 11 we hosted ODAFF, USDA Veterinary Services, USDA Animal Care, 
and OSU Extension veterinarians in a meeting to discuss ongoing programs, our TB 
cases, African Swine Fever preparedness, and to receive updates on what all the 
veterinarians are working on. 
 
On Sunday, February 23 I attended Oklahoma Livestock Marketing Association’s Winter 
Board Meeting.  I gave a brief update on our TB cases and we discussed cattle ID and 
Traceability. 
 
On February 28 Morgan Vance and I traveled to a premises in Bryan County to evaluate 
the cattle and horses.  The Bryan County Sheriff had received a complaint that the 
livestock were being neglected.  We met ODAFF Agriculture Investigators Michael 
Hooper and Jason Smith.  We determined that while most of the horses were in need of 
higher quality hay and feed and more of it that seizing the horses was not necessary.  We 
have maintained contact with the owners and we are confident the horses body condition 
is improving.  The cattle were in normal body condition.  I will go back to check the 
horses on March 30. 
 
On March 2 Dr. Stone gave a 2 hour swine presentation to the OSU OKC Vet Tech 
students.  An overview of what is “normal in swine” was followed abnormal signs in 
swine that should be addressed for a doctor’s examination.  These students were at OYE 
last year and witnessed the problems we had with PED (Porcine Endemic Diarrhea).  
Because of COVID-19 being at the center media coverage, SARS, MERS, COVID-19, 
TGE, PED and PDV (all coronaviruses) were discussed, what is similar, links to many of 
their origin and how some believe we got these diseases.  The real point was the need of 
biosecurity and the different levels of biosecurity, the need to be constantly aware of risk 
factors for disease and everyday things they can make as habits to decrease risk.      
 
On March 3 I spoke to a group of cattlemen with Comanche County Farm Bureau about 
Traceability and our Tuberculosis cases. 
 

OKLAHOMA YOUTH EXPO 
March 10 thru March 15 livestock inspectors, animal health techs and veterinarians from 
ODAFF and USDA worked Oklahoma Youth Expo livestock admission gate for proper 
testing results, proper animal identification and proper certificates of health inspection.  



 E - 7 

Almost all exhibitors had everything necessary and the few who didn’t were educated for 
future shows. 
   
Advertised as “The Largest Youth Livestock Exhibitions in the World”, this event draws 
participation from every community within the state plus attracts people from all over the 
nation. The problem we had in 2019 with PEDv is still fresh on many of the exhibitors’ 
minds which has probably resulted in many positive effects.  People are more interested 
in leaving sick animals home and they are more careful of biosecurity.  In general, the 
barns were kept cleaner, the alleys were cleaner and participants expressed appreciation 
at our ODAFF veterinarians daily walks through the barns checking for animals breaking 
with diseases of economic concern.  This year several animals did develop problems but 
the private veterinarians quickly sampled and all of these animals were negative for 
serious diseases. 
  
COVID-19 was breaking during the start of OYE with many shows and event closing or 
cancelling around the country.  OYE attempted to speed up the show which required 
everyone to ramp up their efforts.  Our personnel were no different.  Without exception, 
everyone stepped forward and gladly adapted to make the effort successful.  In the end 
the show was shortened.  Dr. Stone coordinates the gate schedule and his comments are 
“Our team of livestock inspectors and veterinarians along with USDA animal health techs 
and veterinarians are an excellent, unselfish and willing team made possible by good 
people with great leadership.”    
 

WIN A PIG CONTEST 
The Oklahoma State Fair and the OVMA provide an exhibit of farm animals giving birth 
during the state fair each year, “The State Fair Birthing Center”  What to do with the 
sows and piglets is always a problem.  The farms of origin don’t want the animals back 
because of biosecurity risk to the farms.  The State Fair in the past have donated these 
animals to boy’s homes and various FFA chapters around the state to be used for fund 
raising activities and experience for young people about agriculture.  This year we had 
difficulty finding a place that would take the animals and thus a new program was 
developed. 
 
The “Win a Pig” contest was an essay contest developed by 3 county extension educators 
and Dr. Stone for young people interested in learning about pigs who cannot afford the 
animals typical of today’s swine exhibits.  Of the 32 piglets and 3 sows from the fair, the 
top 18 piglets were placed in homes for this contest.  All participants received 
pre-project training in piglet behavior, husbandry, nutrition, optimal piglet care and 
biosecurity and selected their animal by order of essay placing. 
 
The winners kept journals, submitted weekly reports, competed in an average daily gain 
contest (completed March 7,2020), and had a show back of the animals for skill 
development, animal assessment and welfare evaluation.  An interview competition at the 
completion of the project was conducted. 
 
Animals were donated to food bank or were processed for the participants home use  



 E - 8 

Lots of people came together to make this possible including donations of a local meat 
processor, a feed company, an area nutritionist along with local churches helping 
placement of all pork products by identifying  families in need of food.    
Plans are in place for this to continue in future years. 
  
Poultry Programs: 
We responded to 10 sick bird/dead bird cases in the time period (total of 23 cases in 
2020).  No reportable diseases were discovered in these cases. 
 
Rabies in Livestock: 
There was no activity of note during this time frame. 
 
Sheep and Goat Programs: 
There were no significant activities in the Sheep and Goat programs during this time 
period. 
 
Swine Programs: 
There were no significant changes in the swine programs during this time period. 
 
Miscellaneous: 
Even though it has been almost 2 ½ years since FDA put the Veterinary Feed Directive 
into force I continue to receive calls from veterinarians and producers asking questions 
about the directive and how to properly document the way they are using antibiotics in 
animal feed. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Rod Hall, DVM 



 
F-1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
Wildlife Services Division 

 Board Report for February 2020 Activities 
 
 
Introduction 
 
Wildlife Services (WS) responds to complaints from the public involving problems with wildlife 
throughout Oklahoma.  WS Specialists conduct operational control programs for many of the 
complaints they receive to resolve these wildlife damage problems.  During this period, these 
projects were conducted on 539 properties with an estimated 2,169,911 acres of land under 
agreement.  Additionally, WS helped 166 persons and entities with technical assistance which 
involved providing information to cooperators so they can resolve problems themselves.  
Cooperators reported and WS Specialists verified wildlife damage of $516,162 during this 
period. Beaver damages accounted for losses totaling $123,658. Coyotes were responsible for a 
number of damage requests, primarily to livestock, with losses totaling $102,191. Feral swine 
damages accounted for losses totaling $279,531. Striped skunks, raccoons, and red foxes 
damaged agriculture resources valued at $10,782. 
 
Providing Wildlife Services  
 
 
 

                
 
        

             
 
 
 
 
 

53%

4%

43%

West District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

58%

0%

42%

Northeast District

Feral swine Coyote Beaver

Figure 2: Percent of Species Removed  
in the Northeast District, February 2020 
 

Figure 1: Percent of Species Removed 
in West District, February 2020 
 



F-2 
 

        
 
 
 
 

Coyote Damage Management 
 
On February 1st, a Beaver County landowner requested assistance with coyotes depredating on 
calves.  The landowner reported coyotes were responsible for the loss of 1 calf valued at $1,100.  
The Specialist for Beaver County responded and verified coyotes were responsible for the loss. 
The Specialist utilized neck snares, leg-hold traps and calling to remove 17 coyotes.  No further 
losses have 
occurred. 
 
On February 
3rd, a 
Woodward 
County 
rancher 
contacted 
WS for 
assistance 
with coyote 
damage 
management.  The rancher reported that coyotes were responsible for the loss of 2 calves valued 
at $2,200.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Woodward County responded and verified the 
loss of one calf to coyotes valued at $1,100.  Control efforts were successful in removing 10 
coyotes from the immediate area.  Work is ongoing.  
 
On February 10th, a Greer County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes 
depredating on calves.  The Specialist responded to the request and verified coyotes were 
responsible for the loss of 2 calves valued at $2,200.  The cattle producers has utilized guard 
animals but continued to have losses to coyotes.  The Specialist utilized leg-hold traps and snares 
to remove 17 coyotes.  Work is ongoing. 
 
 
 

88%

10%2%

Southeast District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

68%

20%

12%

State 

Feral swine Coyote Beaver

Figure 4: Percent of Species Removed  
in the State, February 2020 
 

Figure 3: Percent of Species Removed  
in the Southeast District, February 2020 
 

15

92

27 33

7

33
23

14 10

34

2

51
31

3
17

4

59

28 25

52

18

Figure 5: COYOTES REMOVED WEST DISTRICT 
FEBRUARY 2020



 
F-3 

 
 
 

On February 10th, a Bryan County rancher contacted 
Wildlife Services for assistance with coyote control. The 
rancher reported coyotes were responsible for killing a calf 
valued at $1,100. The Specialist responded to the request 
and verified coyotes were responsible for the predation. 
Management efforts were successful in quickly removing 3 
coyotes from the immediate area. No further losses have 
been reported to date.  
 
 

 
Feral Swine Damage Management 
 

On January 29th, a Carter County 
rancher contacted WS for 
assistance with feral swine. The 
rancher reported feral swine were 
responsible for rooting his 
pastures. The Specialist fro Carter 
County responded to the request 
and confirmed feral swine were 
responsible for an estimated 
$7,500 in damages to the property. 
Remote camera traps were utilized 
to remove 18 feral hogs from the 
immediate area. No further losses 

have been reported to date. 
 
On January 30th, Wildlife Servcies was contacted by a Craig County rancher with feral swine 
damage control problems. The rancher reported that feral swine were responsible for rooting 
approximately 20 acres worth of pasture ground valued at $28,000. The Specialist responded to 
the request and verified that feral swine were responsible for the damage reported. The Specialist 
is currently utilizing a live feral swine trap to remove the problem swine. A total of 28 feral 
swine have been removed to date and work is continuing at this time. The rancher was instructed 
on environmental changes and exclusion methods that can be utilized to help prevent future 
damages.  
 
On February 4th, a Custer County landowner requested assistance with feral swine causing 
damage in his pastures and hay bales.  The Wildlife Specialist responded and verified that feral 
swine were responsible for damages totaling $2,500. The Specialist utilized a feral swine live 
trap to remove 109 feral swine from the landowner’s property. And the fixed-winged aircraft was 
utilized to remove an additional 44 swine from the landowner’s property.  The area is being 
monitored closely to see if additional control efforts are needed. 
 
On Feb 8th, the Wildlife Specialist for Caddo County received a request for assistance with feral 
swine. The Rancher reported feral swine were responsible for $5,000 dollars in damage to his 

4 4

Coal Marshall

Figure 6: COYOTES 
REMOVED SOUTHEAST 
DISTRICT FEBRUARY …

40 36
6 6 10 2 12

91

17
1

49

Figure 7: FERAL SWINE REMOVED 
NORTHEAST DISTRICT FEBRUARY 2020



F-4 
 

improved Bermuda pastures. The Specialist responded to the request and verified feral swine 
were responsible. The Specialist utilized a feral swine live trap and shooting to remove 54 feral 
swine from the property.  No further damage has occurred and work is concluded. 
 
On February 9th, a Choctaw County rancher contacted Wildlife Services for assistance with feral 
swine. The rancher reported feral swine were responsible for rooting his pastures. The Specialist 
for Choctaw County responded to the request and confirmed feral swine were responsible for an 
estimated $2,500 in damages to the property. Remote camera traps were utilized to remove 25 
feral swine from the immediate area. No further losses have been reported to date. 
 
On February 11th, Wildlife Services was contacted by Craig County rancher with feral swine 
damage concerns. The rancher reported that feral swine or responsible for rooting approximately 
60 acres worth of pasture ground valued at $84,000. A Specialist responded to the request and 
verified that feral swine were responsible for the damage reported. The Specialist is currently 
utilizing a live feral swine trap to remove the problem swine. A total of 8 feral swine have been 
removed to date and work is continuing at this time. The rancher was instructed on 
environmental changes and exclusion methods that can be utilized to help prevent future 
damages.  
 
On February 13th, an Ellis County rancher requested assistance with feral swine.  The swine were 
responsible for rooting damage on 2 acres of pasture and 5 acres of his wheat field,  totaling 
$2,000 in damage.  The Specialist quickly responded and utilized feral swine live trap and 
shooting to remove 31 swine from the property.  Work is ongoing at this time. 
 
On February 19th, a Bryan County rancher contacted Wildlife Services for assistance with feral 
swine. The rancher reported feral swine were responsible for rooting his pastures. The Specialist 
responded to the request and confirmed feral swine were responsible for an estimated $3,000 in 
damages to the property. Remote camera traps were utilized to remove 9 feral swine from the 
immediate area. No further losses have been reported to date. 
 

                 
 
Aerial Hunting Operations 
 
On February 8th, aerial control operations were conducted in Bryan County. The area flown was a 

378

19
66

174

Carter Coal Latimer Pontotoc

Figure 8: FERAL SWINE 
REMOVED SOUTHEAST 

DISTRICT FEBRUARY 2020

85

18

158

1

70
52

7
32 15

Figure 9: FERAL SWINE 
REMOVED WEST DISTRICT 

FEBRUARY 2020



 
F-5 

project to protect approximately 35,000 acres on area landowners to mitigate damage being caused 
from feral swine. A total of 4.3 hours of flight time was utilized to remove an additional 138 feral 
swine from the immediate area. An additional 35 feral swine were removed with remote cage traps 
and neck snares bringing the total numbers of feral swine removed from the area to 1,051 since 
October 1st, 2019. 
 
Beaver Damage Management 
 
On February 1st, a Murray County landowner contacted WS for assistance with beaver damage 
management.  The landowner reported beaver were causing damage to one of his pond dams. 
The Specialist responded to the request and confirmed beaver were responsible for an estimated 
$5,000 in damages to the area. Management efforts were successful in quickly removing the 
problem beaver.  
 
On February 3rd, a Caddo County Road 
Commissioner requested assistance with beaver 
causing damage to county road and bridges.  The 
Commissioner reported that beavers were 
responsible for $5,000 in damages do the beaver 
damming up the culvert and flooding and 
damaging the adjacent count road.  The Wildlife 
Specialist responded and verified beaver were 
responsible for the damage and utilized 
conibears to remove 8 beaver from the adjacent 
property.  Control efforts are complete at this time. 
 
On February 6th, a LeFlore County Commissioner contacted Wildlife Services for assistance with 
beaver control. The Commissioner reported beavers were plugging culverts and flooding 
roadways at three different road sites. The Specialist responded to the request for assistance and 
confirmed beavers were responsible for an estimated $7,500 in repair costs to the roadways. 
Management efforts were successful in quickly removing the problem beaver from the areas. No 

further losses have been reported to 
date.  
 
On February 10th, a Custer County 
Road Commissioner requested 
assistance with beaver.  The 
Commissioner reported that beaver 
had blocked up the culvert and had 
caused $1,000 damage to the road.  
The Wildlife Specialist for Custer 
County responded and verified 
beaver were responsible for the 
damage and utilized conibears to 

remove 5 beaver.  No further damage has occurred and work is completed. 
 
On February 24th, a Blaine County Road Commissioner requested assistance with beaver.  The 
Commissioner reported that beaver had blocked up the culvert and had caused $500 damage to 

5 6

21

8 6
15

24

4 7 6 5

30

Figure 11: BEAVER REMOVED 
SOUTHEAST DISTRICT FEBRUARY 2020

7
4

7 7 7

1
4 6

Figure 10: BEAVER 
REMOVED WEST 

DISTRICT FEBRUARY 
2020



F-6 
 

the road.  The Wildlife Specialist for Blaine County responded and verified beaver were 
responsible for the damage and utilized conibears to remove 8 beaver.  No further damage has 
occurred and work is ongoing. 
 
On February 19th, Wildlife Services received a call from a Tulsa County landowner who operates 
a Christmas tree farm with a complaint that beavers had destroyed 24 trees valued at $2000. 
After investigating the property, the Specialist utilized conibear traps to remove 2 beavers.  Work 
is ongoing at this time. 
 

 
 
Beaver Damage County Roadways 
 
On February 6th, WS was contacted by a Creek County Commissioner with Beaver damage 
concerns. The commissioner reported that beaver were responsible for flooding a county 
roadway. The flooding damage estimated at $1,200.  The Specialist responded to the request and 
verified that beaver were responsible for the damage. The Specialist utilized thermal vison to 
remove a total of 9 problem beaver. Work is continuing at this time.  

 
On February 4th, Wildlife 
Services was contacted by 
an Ottawa County 
Commissioner with beaver 
damage control concerns. 
The Commissioner reported  
that beaver were responsible 
for flooding a county 
roadway in Pitcher, 
Oklahoma.  The EPA 
implemented a buyout for 
the town due to harmful 
toxins, now making it a 
modern day ghost town.   
The Specialist responded to 
the request and verified that 
beaver were responsible for 

4
10

14

33
27

23
29

7 7
11

1
6 3

9
2

9

Figure 12: BEAVER REMOVED NORTHEAST DISTRICT 
FEBRUARY 2020

Figure 13 – Specialist setting conibear traps in Ottawa County 



 
F-7 

the damage reported. The Specialist is 
currently utilizing a conibear trap to 
remove the problem beaver. Work is 
ongoing at this time  
 
On Feb. 10th, WS Specialists received 
a request from a Pottawatomie Co. 
Commissioner for beaver damage 
control. The Commissioner reported 
that beaver had built a dam in a culvert 
under a county roadway and was 
causing significant flooding. The 
Specialist responded to the request and 
verified that beaver were responsible 
for the damage reported. The 

Specialist removed 6 beaver utilizing conibear traps. The Specialist was able to crawl into the 
culvert downstream and remove the dam. Work is continuing at this time. 
 
 
Table 1: Beaver, Coyote, and Feral Swine removal in the State, January 2020 
 

County Beaver Coyote 
Feral 
swine District 

Adair 2  40 NE 
Alfalfa 1 15  W 
Atoka 5   SE 
Beaver  92  W 
Beckham  27 85 W 
Blaine 7 33 52 W 
Bryan 6 8 225 SE 
Caddo 13 7 77 W 
Canadian 4   W 
Carter    SE 
Cherokee 4   NE 
Choctaw 21  378 SE 
Cimarron  33  W 
Cleveland 4   C 
Coal 8   SE 
Comanche  23  W 
Cotton  14 18 W 
Craig 10  36 NE 
Creek 14  6 NE 
Custer 2  158 W 
Dewey 7 10 26 W 
Ellis 7 34 1 W 
Garfield  2  W 

Figure 14: Specialist in culvert in Pottawatomie County 



F-8 
 

Garvin  4 19 SE 
Grady 7   W 
Grant  24  W 
Greer  51 70 W 
Harmon   52 W 
Harper  31  W 
Haskell 33   NE 
Hughes    SE 
Jackson  5  W 
Johnston 6 2 13 SE 
Kay   6 NE 
Kingfisher 1   W 
Kiowa  3  W 
Latimer 15   SE 
Leflore 24  66 SE 
Lincoln 27  10 NE 
Logan 4 17 7 W 
Love   260 SE 
Major    W 
Major  4 32 W 
Marshall    SE 
Marshall 4   SE 
McClain  4  SE 
McCurtain    SE 
McIntosh 23  2 NE 
Murray 7   SE 
Muskogee 29   NE 
Noble 7  12 NE 
Nowata    NE 
Okfuskee 7  91 NE 
Oklahoma 11 6 72 C 
Okmulgee 11  17 NE 
Osage 4 14 172 W 
Ottawa 1   NE 
Pawnee    NE 
Payne 1  6 NE 
Pittsburg 6  16 SE 
Pontotoc 5   SE 
Pottawatomie 6  1 NE 
Pushmataha 30 4 174 SE 
Roger Mills 6 59 8 W 
Rogers 3   NE 



 
F-9 

Seminole    SE 
Sequoyah 9   NE 
Stephens  28  W 
Texas  25  W 
Tillman  10 15 W 
Tulsa 2   NE 
Wagoner 9  49 NE 
Washington    NE 
Washita  1 16 W 
Woods  52  W 
Woodward 2 18  W 
TOTAL 415 660 2288  

 *NE –Northeast, SE –Southeast, W – West, C – Central Districts 
 
During the month of February, the Wildife Services Disease Biologist was able to collect 
samples from 84 feral swine in 4 Counties; Caddo County, Garvin County, Okfuskee County, 
and Osage County. These samples will be tested for classical swine fever, pseudorabies, swine 
brucellosis, and for genetics. 
 

 
Species/Disease Sample Type Samples 
      classical swine fever   blood/serum 59  
      genetics   tissue 59  
      pseudorabies   blood/serum 59  
      swine brucellosis   blood/serum 59  
Total Samples    236  

 
 
Activities 
 
Altus Air Force Base (AFB) 
During February, wintering waterfowl remained a priority at Altus AFB, by monitoring their 
activity both around the airfield and at the city reservoir. Also conducting harassment methods 
where necessary because of early Spring mitigation. The end of the month was the transitioning 
of these birds to start to migrate out of the area, triggering the change back to phase 1 for flying 
operations. The first movements of the Spring migration have also brought about preparation for 
the increased bird activity in the upcoming months. Pigeon removal continued in the city as 
usual. The exiting of Canada geese from the area brought an end to the winter harassment 
activities at the city reservoir, which will be revisited in June to address any remaining resident 
birds. Work on the hazard assessment was also a big priority of work during the month, both the 
conducting of surveys, as well as backlogging previous months’ data into the new survey123 
system for assessments. Preparation for an upcoming UEI inspection was also a focal point of 
work, which will be conducted in the spring. Altus AFB personnel was also tasked with assisting 
in several training events during the month. An application for the potential dove banding project 
was also submitted to Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation (ODWC) for approval.  
 

Table 2: Species/Disease sampling, February 2020 



F-10 
 

Will Rogers World Airport (WRWA) 
At WRWA this month we have continued trapping beavers to aid in storm water drainage. WS 
employees have successfully trapped 7 beavers and are continuing our trapping efforts. At 
WRWA we have seen a decrease in waterfowl species. WRWA has however started to 
experience an increase in gull populations due to spring migration. The presence of gulls is 
normally only on rainy days due to the earthworms surfacing. Our coyote presence and 
associated take has been consistent with months prior. At WRWA we have also started to see the 
presence of other migratory birds such as, Killdeer, Brown-headed cowbirds, and Mourning 
dove.  At WRWA we also had to dispatch two feral dogs, after several times of escorting them 
out of the Airfield Operations Area (AOA). WRWA has seen normal European Starling numbers 
for this time of year. WS employees have dispatched forty-one, and hazed 1,220.  WS employees 
are continuing our pigeon trapping efforts at AAR. So far this month we have not had any 
wildlife strikes. 
 
Vance Air Force Base (AFB) 
We held our semi-annual Bird Hazard Working Group where we briefed wing leadership about 
the different wildlife mitigation projects here at Vance.  This month I was able to provide most 
of the inputs for the annual changes to the Bird Aircraft Strike Hazard (BASH) plan.  Vance, Air 
Force Joint Airbase ODWC, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS), Ducks Unlimited, 
and Enercon all met in Stillwater for the latest draft of the Drummond Flat Environmental 
Assessment (EA).  Wetland restoration at Drummond will continue after an EA draft, if agreed 
upon by the players mentioned above.  Together with the Air Force Wildland Fire Center we 
burned approximately 490 acres of the Vance Airfield.  Last year we burned just over 400 acres 
on the North half of the airfield.  This year we focused on the remaining 600 plus acres to the 
South.  We were able to get 490 acres complete before the wind speed exceeded the burn 
prescription. Next year we are planning to finish the nearly 200 acres remaining. 
 
Information and Communication  
 
NE District Supervisor was guest speakers at the Grove Rotary Club on February 25th, located at 
Grove, Oklahoma.  The Supervisor spoke over 125 people who attended about concerns with 
feral swine and how to manage them.  The audiences were given information on how feral swine 
traps work, along with history, current status, and distribution, Biology, food habits, identified 
signs, and predation of feral swine.  The information was well received. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Scott Alls 
Division Director 
Wildlife Services Division 



  G-1 
 

March 2020 Activity Report 
for  

April 2020 Board Meeting 
 

Agricultural Statistics Division 
 
 
General:  Temperatures warmed up by the First weekend in March in Oklahoma, with highs 
in the 60’s across most of the state. Rainfall totals averaged 0.14 of an inch across the state last 
week, with the Northeast district recording the highest totals at 0.49 of an inch. According to the 
February 25, US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 13 percent abnormally 
dry to exceptional drought, down 1 point from the previous week. Additionally, 5 percent of the 
state was in the moderate drought to exceptional drought category, unchanged from the previous 
week. Statewide, temperatures averaged in the mid 40’s. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions 
were rated mostly adequate to short. 
 
Temperatures continued their warming trend across Oklahoma the second week of March, with 
average highs in the low to mid 60’s across all reporting districts. Rainfall totals averaged 0.17 of 
an inch across the state last week, with the Southwest district recording the highest totals at 0.37 
of an inch. According to the March 3, US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were 
rated 14 percent abnormally dry to severe drought, up 1 point from the previous week. 
Additionally, 5 percent of the state was in the moderate drought to severe drought category, 
unchanged from the previous week. Statewide, temperatures averaged in the upper 40’s. Topsoil 
and subsoil moisture conditions were rated mostly adequate to short. 
 
Spring is on the way during the third week of March, with reported highs exceeding 80’s in 7 
of the reporting districts. Rainfall totals averaged 1.53 of an inch across the state last week, with 
the Southeast district recording the highest totals at 2.56 of an inch. According to the March 10, 
US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 14 percent abnormally dry to severe 
drought, unchanged from the previous week. Additionally, 5 percent of the state was in the 
moderate drought to severe drought category, also unchanged from the previous week. 
Statewide, temperatures averaged in the mid 60’s. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions were 
rated mostly adequate to short. 
 
Temperatures cooled off over the weekend during the fourth week in March, with 7 of the 
districts reporting lows in the 20’s on Saturday March 21st. Rainfall totals averaged 2.32 inches 
across the state last week, with the Southeast district recording the highest totals at 3.44 inches. 
According to the March 17, US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 8 
percent abnormally dry to severe drought, down 6 points from the previous week. Additionally, 4 
percent of the state was in the moderate drought to severe drought category, down 1 point from 
previous week. Statewide, temperatures averaged in the low 60’s. Topsoil and subsoil moisture 
conditions were rated mostly adequate to surplus. 
 
Winter wheat jointing reached 27 percent, up 1 point from the previous year but down 8 points 
from normal. Rye jointing reached 15 percent, down 6 points from the previous year and down 9 
points from normal. Oats jointing reached 4 percent, down 7 points from the previous year and 
down 7 points from normal.  



  G-2 
 

Pasture and range condition was rated at 92 percent good to fair. Livestock condition was rated 
at 94 percent good to fair. 
 
Surveys:  Surveys conducted between February and March administered by the Oklahoma call 
center are listed in the table below: 
 
 

Survey Enumerated 
by: Survey Dates 

Trout Phone Jan 21 – Feb 11 

Bi-monthly Cotton Ginning Phone Feb 3 – Feb 5 

Organics Survey Phone Feb 3 – Mar 13 

NFI Slaughter Phone Feb 6 – Feb 10 
Grain Prices Phone Feb 10 – Feb 14 
Hay Prices Phone Feb 11 – Feb 14 
March Crop Production Phone Feb 28 - Mar 15 
March Hogs Phone Mar 2 – Mar 15 
Bi-monthly Cotton Ginning Phone Mar 2 – Mar 4 
NFI Slaughter Phone Mar 6 – Mar 10 
Grain Prices/Grain Stocks Phone Mar 10 – Mar 16 
Berry PDI Phone Mar 11 – Mar 30 
Calling Suspended on 3/18/2020 due to COVID-19   
 
 
Statistics:  The 2019 Farms and Land in Farms were released on February 20, 2020. Highlights 
include: 
 
The number of Oklahoma farms remain unchanged from 77,300 farms. Oklahoma land in farms 
increased in 2019 to 34.4 million acres, up slightly from the previous year. Average farm size 
increased to 445 acres per farm. 
 
On March 19, 2020, the Price Reactions after Crop Reports where release. Highlights include: 
 

Price Reactions Week after Crop Report  
Crop Increased Price No Change in Price Decreased Price 
Corn (1985-2019) 87 1 86 
Soybeans (1985-2019) 87 3 84 
Wheat (1987-2019) 88 4 86 
Cotton (1989-2019) 100 1 84 
 



  G-3 
 

Information Requests:  Phone calls, personal visits to our office, and requests via e-mail for 
information since last report totaled 23.  In addition, our internet home page was hit 2,649 times 
in February 2020, for a total of 5,579 for the 2020 year. 
 
 
Releases for February:  Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production   February 1, 2020  February 11, 2020 
Farms and Land in Farms  2019 year   February 20, 2020 
Corn, Soy, Sorghum County Est 2019 year   February 20, 2020 
Cattle on Feed    February 1, 2020  February 21, 2020 
Agricultural Prices   February 15, 2020  February 28, 2020 
 
Releases for March:  Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production   March 1, 2020   March 10, 2020 
Price Reactions after Crop Reports 2019 year   March 12, 2020 
Price Reactions after Livestock 2019 year   March 12, 2020 
Cattle on Feed    March 1, 2020    March 20, 2020 
Hogs and Pigs    March 1, 2020    March 26, 2020 
Prospective Plantings   March 1, 2020    March 31, 2020 
Grain Stocks    March 1, 2020    March 31, 2020 
Agricultural Prices   March 15, 2020  March 31, 2020 
 
Meetings and Events:  Date:    Location: 
Get-Ag-Cited about the Port  March 3, 2020   Port of Catoosa, OK 
Peanut Expo    March 12, 2020  Weatherford, OK 
TECO Meeting   March 17, 2020  Virtual 
Sorghum Commission   March 26, 2020  Virtual 
SEB/FAC Meeting   March 27, 2020  Virtual 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
          Respectfully Submitted,  
             
 
          
         Troy Marshall 



H-1 
 
 
 

MARKET DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
April 8, 2020 

Report to the State Board of Agriculture  
 
AG IN THE CLASSROOM 
 
AG IN THE CLASSROOM IMPACT 

● Total Number of Teachers/Administrators Impacted: 246 
● Total Number of Pre-Service Teachers Impacted: 87 
● Total Number of Volunteers Impacted: 60 
● Total Number of Students Directly Impacted by Coordinators: 6,126 
● Total Number of Resources Given: 1,268 

AG IN THE CLASSROOM WEBSITE, LESSON IMPACT, AND SOCIAL MEDIA 
• The AITC website had 7,692 visits and 6,181 unique page view visits. 
• AITC lessons were downloaded 1,236 times. 
• The AITC monthly email is delivered to 12,477 accounts. 
• The AITC Facebook page now has 5,195 followers. 
• The AITC Twitter page now has 559 followers. 
• Oklahoma AITC Instagram account now has 414 followers.  
• Oklahoma AITC Pinterest account now has 173 followers. 
• The AITC YouTube channel now has 6,103 views.  
•  Kahoot: 87 Kahoot games with 803+ plays by 6,467+ players. 
 
Ag in the Classroom- Professional Development Workshops 

Number of 
Educators & 

Grade 
Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

36 PreService 
Teachers ECU Ada 

Think in Pictures Like Dr Grandin: 
Made corrals and peppermint putty. 

Specialty Cropopoly, Jr; 
AITC Commodity 
Bookmarks and Barn of 
other AITC Resources 

20 PreService 
ECE Teachers OSU 

Representative Jacob Rosencrants 
spoke about “Play Based Learning 
Initiative.” Then AITC Coordinator 
shared AITC website and resources 

Specialty Cropopoly, Jr; 
Specialty Crop Ag 
Magazine  

15 PreService 
Teachers 

OAEA Spring Convention 
held at Cameron University, 
Lawton  

Garden in a Glove; Modifying the 
Plow Barn of AITC Resources 

16 Education 
Majors OU 

Fruit and Veggie Self Portraits; 
Thinking in Pictures; Timeline of 
Food AITC Resources 



H-2 
 
 
 

Ag in the Classroom- Student Events 

Number of 
Participants 

& Grade 
Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

500 K-8 
students and 
30 K-8 
teachers  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Keys School in Tahlequah 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and  a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

50 K-3 
students and 6 
K-3 teachers  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Dahlonegah School in Stilwell 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and  a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

100 K-1,4,6- 
7th grade 
students and 7 
teachers  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Maryetta school in Stilwell  

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning students 
received framed artwork, 
citations, and a medal and 
gift card from Oklahoma 
Beef Council 

1 high school 
student 
Winner, 
principal and 
vice principal  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Stilwell HS  

Winning students 
received framed artwork. 
Was supposed to receive 
other prizes during Ag 
Day. 

150 PreK-8 
students and 8 
teachers 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Norwood Elementary in 
Hulbert 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning students 
received framed artwork, 
citations, and a medal and 
gift card from Oklahoma 
Beef Council 

202 PreK-6th 
students and 
10 teachers Award presentation at Maysville 

Secretary Arthur, Meriruth Cohenour, 
and Cheri Long joined the AITC Staff 
to announce that Christie Pucket is a 
National Excellence in Teaching 
Agriculture Award Winner. During 
the assembly, students learned about 
agriculture and were allowed to ask 
questions.  

40 
kindergarten 
students, 3 
teachers and 1 
principal 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Roland Elementary 

Spoke to the classes about the reasons 
agriculture is important in their daily 
lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

250 
elementary 
students and 

TOY Finalist Presentation at 
Anadarko Elementary for 
Sherree` Orrell 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives  



H-3 
 
 
 

13 teachers 

20 elementary 
students and 1 
teacher  

Coloring Contest Winner 
Presentation at Cornelson 
Elementary in Fairview 

Spoke to the class about the reasons 
agriculture is important in their daily 
lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

250 ECE 
students and 
13 teachers  

Coloring Contest Winner 
Presentation at Depew 
Elementary 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

10 high 
school 
students and 1 
teacher  

Poster Contest Winner 
Presentation at Waukomis High 
School Ag-Ed Class 

Spoke to the class about the reasons 
agriculture is important in their daily 
lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

450 PreK-6 
students and 
23 teachers 

Poster Contest Winner 
Presentation at Lindsay 
Elementary School 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from OK Beef Council 

180 6th grade 
students and 9 
teachers 

Mustang Horizon Intermediate 
School 

National AITC - Ag Careers lessons 
and activities 

AITC Ag Commodity 
Bookmarks  

3- 7th 
students and 1 
teacher 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Eisenhower Middle School in 
Lawton Award Presentation 

Winning students 
received framed artwork, 
citations, and a medal and 
gift card from Oklahoma 
Beef Council 

300 7-12th 
grade students 
and 15 
teachers 

AITC Teacher of the Year 
presentation at Morrison  

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives  

260 3rd-5th 
grade students 
and 13 
teachers 

TOY Finalist Presentation for 
Anna Wofford and Student 
Winner Presentation at Frederick 
Elementary  

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

500 PreK-5 
students and 
25 teachers  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Richmond Elementary School 
in Stillwater 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning students 
received framed artwork. 
Was supposed to receive 
other prizes during Ag 
Day. 

900 6-7th 
grade students  

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Stillwater Middle School  

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning students 
received framed artwork. 
Was supposed to receive 
other prizes during Ag 
Day. 



H-4 
 
 
 

120 High 
School 
Students 

Port of Catoosa Ag at the Port 
Student Event Oklahoma's Inland Waterway 

12 Cropopoly Jr Games; 
20 Sets of AITC Seed 
packets; 50 Ag on Rt 66 
magazines 

250 PreK-5th 
grade students 
and 13 
teachers 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Mooreland Elementary School  

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from Oklahoma Beef 
Council 

400 6th grade 
students and 
20 teachers 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Whittier Middle School in 
Norman 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from OK Beef Council 

480 3rd-5th 
grade students 
and 24 
teachers 

Bonnie Plants Cabbage Contest 
Winner Presentation at Cleveland 
Elementary School 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

25 Ag on Rt 66 
Magazines; 25 Upper 
Level Specialty Crop 
Magazines; 2 Fruits, Nuts, 
and Veggie Booklets; 2 
Sets of Bookmarks for 
Cabbage Winner's teacher 
last year and this year. 

130 PreK-6th 
grade students  
and 7 teachers 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Canton Elementary School 

Spoke to the assembly about the 
reasons agriculture is important in 
their daily lives 

Winning student received 
framed artwork, citations, 
and a medal and gift card 
from OK Beef Council 

550 6-12th 
grade students  

STEM Day at Central Tech in 
Drumright 

Spoke to students about STEM in 
agriculture 

Gave out 100 bookmarks 
and 10 sets of 
Engineering Process 
Posters/Tearsheets Upper 
level 

30 9-12th 
grade students 
and 1 teacher 

AITC Contest Award Presentation 
at Stuart High School 

Spoke to the class about the reasons 
agriculture is important in their daily 
lives  

 

Ag in the Classroom- Resources Mailed or Delivered 

Number of 
Resources 

Location Resources were 
Mailed or Delivered  

Resources Mailed 

1 Emerson Elementary in Duncan  A Barn of AITC Resources 
1 Prue School A Barn of AITC Resources 

13 Olive Schools 
ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book (PreK-
3rd) 

100 Cushing PreK ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book (PreK-



H-5 
 
 
 

3rd) 

50 Cushing Upper Elementary 
Does Chocolate Milk Come From Brown Cows? Student Activity 
sheets 

25 Union 6th-7th Grade Center Specialty Crop Ag Mag Activity Book student magazine 

20 Union 6th-7th Grade Center 
Specialty Crops Ag Mag student magazine;  
 

40 Union 6th-7th Grade Center ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book  
50 Cleveland Intermediate School Specialty Crop Ag Mag Activity Book student magazine 
540 OSU for 1st Grade Ag Fest Specialty Crops Ag Mag student magazine;  
30 sets OSU for 1st Grade Ag Fest AITC Commodity Bookmarks 
18 OSU for 1st Grade Ag Fest Specialty Cropopoly Jr 
6 Luther Middle School Oklahoma Ag on Rt 66 student magazine (PreK-3rd) 
6 Luther Middle School Specialty Crops Ag Mag student magazine (PreK-3rd) 

1 each Luther Middle School 

Fruits, Nuts, and Veggies, Oh My!, Harvest of the Month set of 
12 posters, Engineering Process Early Childhood/Lower 
Elementary teacher poster (PreK-3rd) 

50 Cleveland Intermediate School 
Specialty Crop Ag Mag Activity Book student magazine (4th-
12th) 

100 LeFlore County Extension 
Specialty Crop Ag Mag Activity Book student magazine (4th-
12th) 

100 
Cherokee County Health Services 
Council 

ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book (PreK-
3rd) 

3 Chisholm Public Schools 
ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book (PreK-
3rd) 

1 each Chisholm Public Schools 

Fruits, Nuts, and Veggies, Oh My!, Nutrition and Did You Know 
Fun Facts set of 12 posters, Engineering Process Upper Level 
teacher poster (4th-12th) 

30 3J Farms OK ~ A Learning Farm Specialty Crops Ag Mag student magazine (PreK-3rd) 

30 3J Farms OK ~ A Learning Farm 
Specialty Crop Ag Mag Activity Book student magazine (4th-
12th) 

18 3J Farms OK ~ A Learning Farm 
ABC's of Oklahoma Agriculture student coloring book (PreK-
3rd) 

12 3J Farms OK ~ A Learning Farm 
Oklahoma Red Dirt Groundbreakers (3rd & 9th- Oklahoma 
History) 

19 each Saint Luke's Christian School  
Lower Level Specialty Crop Mags, Ag on Rt 66, FNV, Seeds, 
Cropopoly, HOM Posters 

4 class sets 
Orvis Risner Elementary - 
Edmond 4 class sets of "Thinking in Pictures" reader 

 
 

 

 

 



H-6 
 
 
 

Ag in the Classroom- Other Events 

Event Highlights 

OK Farmers Market and 
Agritourism conference, 
Edmond 

Trained 60 producers to use AITC Resources and Activities to create teachable 
moments on the farm. Harvest of the Month and Nutrition Posters; Fruits, Nuts, and 
Veggie booklets; and Commodity Bookmarks given to use at their venue. 

AFR Booth Talked to 200 people and shared AITC information 

AITC Advisory Meeting 
Advisory board members shared commodity updates and also heard from Secretary 
Blayne Arthur. 

Meeting at Carnegie Middle 
School 

Helped with developing an elective class at the middle school for Ag in the 
Classroom  

LETRS Unit 7 Training SDE 
Spring 2020 Pork Council 
Grant  6 recipients were notified they will receive $500 each 
SEOSU Education 
Department Site visit to set up professional development for education majors 
Allen; Antlers Elementary 
and Hugo Elementary Site visits about a PD in the Fall 
 
Ag in the Classroom- New Lessons; Website Additions; Resources 

Type Website URL 

New Lesson 
Modifying the Plow 3rd-5th grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/lessons/plow.pdf 

New Census Lesson 
Counting Sheep or People? Census 2020 PreK-2nd Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/sheep/countsheep.pdf 

New Census Lesson 
American Farmers Count! Census 2020 3rd-5th Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/intermed/census.pdf 

Updated Lesson 
Think in Pictures: Like Dr. Grandin 3rd-5th Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/intermed/census.pdf 

New Lesson 
Think in Pictures: Like Dr. Grandin 6th-8th Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/intermed/thinkpictures_68.pdf 

Updated Lesson 
Pop, Pop, Popcorn 3rd-5th Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/corn/popcorn_prek2.pdf 

New Lesson 
Pop, Pop, Popcorn PreK-2nd Grade: 
https://www.agclassroom.org/ok/lessons/corn/popcorn_prek2.pdf 

 
 
 



H-7 
 
 
 

AGRITOURISM 
 
Agritourism - Site Visits 

Producer Location Category Highlights 
Joe’s Farm Bixby U-pick Joe requested social media help – updated his 

Facebook profile, created a post and taught him 
and a staff member how to use canva (social 
media tool), Joe is cutting back on produce and 
focusing more on strawberries and adding 
blackberries, wants to add u-pick flowers this 
year, and eventually a produce retail store in his 
renovated barn.  

National Cowboy & 
Western Heritage 
Museum  

OKC Farm & Ranch 
Attractions 

Attended a tourism industry meeting, attended a 
tour of the new exhibit being built  

 
Agritourism - New Producers or Potential Producers 

Producer Location  Category Highlights 
Tucker’s Tulips Ada  Horticulture Site visit and added as a new 

producer, first u-pick tulip farm in the 
state 

The Picking Fields Hydro  Horticulture Email consult, visiting soon  
B-C Ranch Vinita  Country Stay, 

Pumpkins, 
Winery & 
Vineyards 

Site visit and consultation. Ken has 
lots of ideas. Should be ready to add 
as a country stay this summer and 
eventually pumpkins and winery.  

 
Agritourism – Web and Social Traffic 
Facebook: 11,328 page likes 
Instagram: 1,172 followers 
 
Agritourism - Other Activities 

• Hosted the Oklahoma Farmers Market and Agritourism Conference 
o Day 1: 4 hour marketing session with 50 producers 
o Day 2: 4 agritourism sessions, 24 farmers market sessions, 454 attendees 
o Day 3: agritourism bus tour with 35 participants 

• Wrote a new blog post for spring activities in agritourism 
• Met with Caddo County representatives to promote OK agritourism 
• Radio interview with Caddo County Extension Agent for Anadarko Radio about 

agritourism 
• Updated wine trail map on the website and brochure 
• FFA Day at the Capitol: took photos of FFA members and Secretary Arthur, edited and 

sent photos to FFA Advisors 
• Update Jelly Making Trails, contacted all producers 
• Updated Agritourism events calendar for Agritourist newsletter 
• Governor’s Wheat Challenge: set up and ran video/audio 
• Assisted with OK History Center to plan the OK Farm-To-Table event 



H-8 
 
 
 

• OYE Skillathon: created test officials, created a graphic for social media, made flyer to 
post at OYE w/schedule, created the practicum test answers 

• Created a new OK Grown logo for farmers market bags and for OK Grown stickers 
• Created an agritourism advertisement for Enid News travel section 
• Attended a meeting with USDA – Rural Development staff to learn how our 

organizations can help each other 
• OSU student job shadow 
• Presented to Ripley FCCLA about choosing a career and OK agritourism 
• Coordinate the launch of Loklahoma  

o Loklahoma connects consumers with producers who are selling local food 
o Gathered producer information to create regional lists  
o Created social media graphics to promote to consumers 

• Success story: We made a post promoting our new tulip farm, see below. We had 715 
likes, 706 comments, more than 1,200 shares and overall our post reached 190,748 
people on Facebook. We helped this business triple the number of followers on Facebook 
from 1,200 follows to almost 4,000 now! 
 

 



H-9 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

Activity Action Location  

2020 Specialty Crop Block Grant  

After the RFA went out on January 21st the SCBG 
grant coordinator worked with potential applicants 
to answer questions about the program and if their 
ideas would qualify for the grant. Deadline for 
submitting applications was March 19th. ODAFF 
received 15 external proposals requesting over $1.2 
million in funding. USDA notified ODDAF we will 
receive $589,536.30 to distribute. Proposals will 
now go before a selection committee for their 
review.   

Viticulture & Enology Grant 
program 

A selection committee met on February 19th to 
review the 4 applications submitted for funding. 
Following the criteria set forth by ODAFF the 
committee selected 2 proposals for funding. 
(Oklahoma Grape Management Class and Research 
Vineyard Support & Monitoring The Vectors Of 
Grapevine Red Blotch Virus Using Minion 
Sequencing In Oklahoma)   

Agriculture Enhancement & 
Diversification Program 

At the January 30th meeting, two (2) Farm 
Diversification applications were approved for 
Robert Horton and Native American Hemp LLC. 
Contracts have been written and mailed to 
recipients for their signature.   

Review and approve SCBG invoices 

SCBG grant coordinator approved 10 invoices for 
payment after reviewing receipts and purchases in 
make sure they were within the terms of the 
contractual agreement with ODAFF.   

USDA Rural Development meeting 

Members of the Market Development staff traveled 
to Stillwater on March 5th and met with 2 members 
of the USDA Rural Development staff to get a 
better understanding of their financial assistance 
programs and how they could benefit the various 
clientele of Market Development.  Stillwater 

 
FARM TO SCHOOL 
 

ACTIVITY ACTION LOCATION 
Farmer’s Market Conference Farm to School Staff had a booth 

and presented at the Farmers 
Market Conference. At the booth 
staff encouraged producers to fill 
out the Farm to School Survey for 
producers. We got back 5 surveys. 
Staff also presented during a 
session. There were 36 in 
attendance. Staff went over what 
Farm to School is and how it 
functions in our state. Participants 

Hilton Garden Inn - Edmond 



H-10 
 
 
 

played a game using fruits and 
Vegetables. This activity came 
from an AITC resource.  
 

Agritourism Tour Farm to School Staff participated in 
this tour. Drove behind the bus to 
help participants get to areas that 
were not suitable for the bus to go if 
needed.  

Farms visited included: Farm on 
Fishmarket, a Christmas Tree farm, 
winery and Lavender farm 
 

USDA – National Farm to School 
Conference Call 

Discussed USDA Proposed Rule 
changes in regards to schools and 
serving food to the students With 
the Summer Feeding Program.  

Office 

Greener Grounds Hydroponic Farm 
Visit 

 Irene Schulz and her husband built 
this facility and it is state of the art. 
They grow several varieties of 
lettuce and herbs and they also 
grow tomatoes. The lettuce is 
grown using hydroponics using 
tilapia fish. 6 containers of fish that 
when they start with the tiny fish 
can have 1000 in each tank, so 6000 
fish! At the time of the visit they 
had around 450-500 fish. The 
process is very impressive. After 
our visit, we discussed visits and 
tours and they definitely want 
visitors, especially students. 

Sand Springs 

Food Desert Ideation Meeting Farm to School is a part of a food 
desert committee. Today was the 
second meeting which they called it 
Food Ideation. We met and 
discussed ideas on how help with 
the food desert issues our state 
faces. 

American Heart Associate Building 
in OKC 

Farm to School Radio Interview David Nowlin with OSU extension 
hosts a radio show in Grady 
County. Did an interview about 
Farm to School 

Chickasha 

Farm to School Conference Call for 
Southwest Region Coordinators 

 Introductory meeting to get 
acquainted with our counterparts in 
the Southwest region. This 
includes: Oklahoma, Arizona, 
Arkansas, New Mexico, 
Texas, Louisiana, and Utah. A 
decision was made to do quarterly 
calls to help support F2S programs 
in our region and to discuss any 
important items regarding grants, 
proposals, USDA items etc. 

Call 

 
 



H-11 
 
 
 

FARMERS MARKETS 
 

Event/Meeting Location Details 
2020 OKFMAC Edmond Farmers Markets mangers, 

vendors and supporters met for a 
3 day conference over local 
food.  

Agritourism rolling workshop Various The 3rd day of the OKFMAC. 
Toured 4 different Agritourism 
Venus 

Launch Loklahoma Various Helped Agritourism staff with 
launch of the new local food 
campaign Loklahoma 

Open Farmers Markets Various Gathered a list of for sure 
markets opening in March and 
created COVID-19 fact sheet for 
them.  

 
Other Activities: 

• Staff spent two weeks in Chile learning about the countries Agriculture. This trip was the 
final of OALP. 

INTERNATIONAL 
 

Activity Action Location  
Ag Commerce Meeting Discuss the details of STEP for the trade shows and 

the USDA mission to Spain for the OK Sorghum 
Commission 

ODOC 

GIT (Governors International 
Team) Meeting 

Updated the group on our STEP grant upcoming 
deadline and status. Discussed cancellation of the 
World Trade Conference & Consular Trade Summit 
April 1-3rd in Owasso.  

ODOC 

ODEC Meeting (Oklahoma 
District Export Council)  

This meeting was cancelled due to the Postponement 
of the World Trade Conference due to COVID19 
cancellation of the Consul Summit decided in the 
GIT meeting.  

 
 
 
N/A 

USDA Trade Missions 
Announced 

While final dates are subject to confirmation, 
scheduled 2020 trade missions include:  
• North Africa (Algeria, Libya, Morocco and 
Tunisia), March 16-19  
• Philippines, April 20-23  
• Spain and Portugal, June 8-11*  
• United Kingdom, September 14-17*  
• Australia and New Zealand, October 19-23*  
• Peru, November 2-5  
• United Arab Emirates, November 15-18*  

N/A 



H-12 
 
 
 

 
*Denotes first-time destination 

Meeting with Christine 
Wheaton for Fancy Food 

Christine is assisting with the companies getting 
registered with the Specialty Food Association. They 
have changed their membership procedures.  

Call 

Food Export NRA project 1. This project is still a go at this present time. 
Following up with the buyers and 
participants to keep them informed of the 
ongoing changes. Food Export is not yet 
booking travel for anyone. 

 
 

Conference Call 

STEP Grant Project • Coordinated with Commerce on how to 
reimburse money already spent by 
companies and how to roll over grant to 
2021. 

CANCELLED -National Restaurant Association 
Show May 16-19, 2020 
https://www.nationalrestaurantshow.com/ 
 
Fancy Food Show June 28-30, 2020 
https://www.specialtyfood.com/shows-
events/summer-fancy-food-show/ 
 
The companies that have applied and been accepted 
are as follows: 
Fancy Food 

1. Ben Jack Laredo 
2. Kize 
3. Amelia’s Creamery 
4. Schwab Meat 

 
NRA Show 

1. Schwab Meat 
2. Shawnee Milling 
3. Value Added Products 

 
 

 

MIO Expo • Assisted with Set up and attended the show 
to visit companies about Food Export and 
network  

Southwind Hills 
Goldsby, OK  

Trade Ecosystem & Referral 
Document 

• Stephen Sullivan, Sr. Trade Specialist for 
SBA and Jesse Garcia discussed a future 
document that would be a resource to all 
service providers visiting with Oklahoma 
Companies. Stephen took note of the 

Call 

https://www.nationalrestaurantshow.com/
https://www.specialtyfood.com/shows-events/summer-fancy-food-show/
https://www.specialtyfood.com/shows-events/summer-fancy-food-show/


H-13 
 
 
 

unusual “ecosystem” we have here in 
Oklahoma and when the document is 
complete would like to share this as a best 
practice with other states.  

MIO/Commerce Event  Visited hotels and got info on cost of room rental, 
food etc for the MIO/ Commence event set to take 
place April 29th in conjunction with the FFA 
Convention.  
 
Unfortunately, at this time both event are postponed 
due to COVID19. Hopefully they will both take 
place in the fall.  

Sheraton, 
Downtown 
OKC 

USDA RD/ODAFF meeting  Met with USDA Rural Development staff as the first 
of quarterly meetings to see how we can overlap and 
assist each division’s programs. Introductions were a 
start and shared about all programs as a start.  

USDA RD 
office Stillwater, 
OK 

Food Export New Liaison for 
Oklahoma 

Had an introduction call with the Liaison assigned to 
Oklahoma. Jeremiah James will be taking the lead at 
Food Export and will ODAFF and all of OK 
companies go to for questions and issues. We set up 
a monthly call to discuss recruitment/catchup.  

Call 

 
Company Visits: 
 
Schwab Meats, 1111 Linwood Blvd, OKC 
 
List of companies visited at the MIO EXPO  
 
Ace in the Bowl 
Ameila's Creamery 
Bedre  
Clements Food Company 
Del Real Foods  
Della Terra Pasta 
Dianes signature Products 
Griffin Food Company 
Head Country 
Healthy Cravings 
Homeland Baking 
KiZE Concepts 
Leonard Mountain 
Mountain View Meats 
Over the Fence 
Prairie Wolf Spirits 
Schwab Meat 
Shawnee Mills 



H-14 
 
 
 

Siegi Sausage 
Suan's 
Woody Candy 
Dough Boyz 
Schwab 
 
MADE IN OKLAHOMA PROGRAM 
 

Meeting Location Details  
Liquidfish meeting Liquidfish office (OKC) Met with Liquidfish staff to 

discover new logo options 
MIO Expo Goldsby MIO Coalition companies set up for 

restaurants, food service, etc to 
come and see their products.  

USDA Discovery Meeting Stillwater USDA Office ODAFF Staff met with USDA staff 
to discover what programs the 
USDA offers that can help small 
businesses. 

MIO Coalition General Meeting Fiddler Marketing  Attended the MIO Coalition 
General meeting.  

MIO Emerging Committee Fiddler Marketing Listened to presentation about 
online marketing 

Penn Square Mall Meeting Penn Square Mall Staff and Agritourism staff met 
with the marketing team and 
discussed opportunities for Made in 
Oklahoma and how we can help the 
mall.  

Energy OKC Meeting Energy Office Staff met with OKC Energy staff to 
learn and discover more about the 
MIO night event.  

Tulsa Home and Garden Show Tulsa 11 Made in Oklahoma companies 
were involved in the MIO area. It 
was a great event with decent 
participation. The show closed 
early due to COVID-19. 

 
 
New Made in Oklahoma Companies 

Company Name Location Details Website 
Twister Strums Norman Veteran owned shop 

making handcrafted folk 
and roots musical 
instruments. 

https://twisterstrums.com/ 

MiraFlex Oklahoma City  All natural anti-
inflammatories 

https://miraflexworks.com 

Premier Popcorn Tulsa Gourmet Popcorn https://premier-popcorn.com/ 
 
Other Activities: 

• Cancelled  2020 Ag Day at the Capitol information  

 



H-15 
 
 
 

MIO COALITION 
 
Made in Oklahoma Coalition – Advertising, Web and Social Traffic 

Type $ Spent Highlights 
Digital Billboard Advertising $2,000/month Features rotating company ads and restaurant of the 

month ads – each month rotates between OKC & Tulsa 
Markets 

Digital Marketing (ad’s) March: 
$1,800 YouTube 
$2,000 Facebook 
$255 Google 
Display 
 

Meet MIO video and MIO 20th anniversary ads 
showcasing MIO products & encouraging folks to buy 
local & drive traffic to MIO website 

MIO Featured Monthly Recipes in 
Tulsa World and Oklahoman 

$500/month each Featured press release and 1-2 showcased recipes in 
food section 

Oklahoma Today Podcast $500/month MIO sponsoring Oklahoma Today Podcast 
MIO City Bus Wrap $1500/month/ 

bus 
Busses run throughout the OKC and Tulsa on different 
routes for one full calendar year. 

Marketing, Consulting and 
Graphics Retainer with Boiling 
Point Media 

$4,500 Social media posts, digital presence, analytics, 
management of content and creation of digital footprint, 
recipe file management. 

MIO TV Cooking Segments on 
KFOR, KAUT and KWTV 

• 8 featured segments 

3/7, 3/11, MIO Recipes for the month of February & March were 
featured during on-air cooking segments with David 
Brooks. 

Social Media Stats BPM retainer Twitter: 5,598 
Instagram: 2,335 
Facebook: 14,631 

 
Made in Oklahoma Coalition – Other Activities 

Activity Information 

MIO + Edible Magazine Meeting 
• February 10th  

Staff met with Edible magazine to discuss potential partnership 
opportunities for FY 2021 

Food Service Meeting 
• February 14th  

Staff and MIO FS Committee met to plan for July MIO Restaurant 
Showcase event and talk through logistics with the RFBO to which all 
event proceeds will go towards 

Expo Planning Meeting 
• February 14th  

Final expo planning meeting before the event. Tied up loose ends 

MIO Recipe Photoshoot 
• February 21st  

Staff, MIO food photographer & MIO food stylist met and shot March, 
April, May and June recipes (6 total) 

MIO Market Research Planning 
Meeting 

• February 27th  

Staff and MIO planning committee met with Bill Shapard of Shapard 
research to develop questionnaire for focus groups and make plan for 
shop-a-longs and market research activities 

March MIO Monthly Meetings 
• OKC, OK 
• March 6th  

Monthly MIO meetings were held at the Oklahoma Department of 
Agriculture, Food and Forestry. Retail, General and Emerging Committee 
meetings were held that day.  

MIO Expo  
• Goldsby, OK 
• March 4th   

MIO put on its 5th annual Expo on March 4th at Southwind Hills Barn 
Venue. The event was well attended by all major Oklahoma retailers, 
distributors (retail and food service), and companies reported back that 
they made significant contacts and business deals at the event. Staff was 
happy with the turnout, all things considered, and thanks all of the State 



H-16 
 
 
 

Board of Ag members for attending, and for the ODAFF Directors and 
Secretary Arthur for their support of the event. 

Meeting with Penn Square Mall 
• OKC, OK 
• March 10th  

Staff along with other market development team members met with Penn 
Square Mall to discuss potential partnership opportunities for member 
companies and mutual promotions 

MIO + Chesapeake Arena MIO 
House Promotion Meeting 

• Thunder Game v. Utah Jazz  
• March 11th  
 

Staff was to present the CEA Food Service providers, Savor & Levy, with 
the first ever MIO House recognition award, however the game got 
cancelled during pre-game warm-up. Even though the game was cancelled 
MIO still got some recognition as the Thunder put a blurb about MIO and 
the recognition in the in-game program and also in a pre-game email to 
season ticket holders time presentation and sending updates to season 
ticket holders to announce the launch  
 
What does it mean to be an MIO House? It means a venue has committed 
to utilizing local food products and Made in Oklahoma ingredients in their 
eating establishments, including concessions throughout the concourse, 
suites, and in-house restaurants, whenever possible. As of now the arena is 
using products from 20 MIO companies.  

Lazy E Timed Event Championship 
+ Chuck Wagon Feed Sponsorship 

• March 13th -15th  

MIO sponsored the Lazy E Timed Event Championship Chuck Wagon 
feed for the 4th time this year. MIO companies provided food donations for 
the wagons and MIO also donated $1000 for the event. MIO was branded 
throughout the meal area and was represented in arena signage as well.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



H-17 
 
 
 

MARKET NEWS SERVICES 
 

        February 6, 2020    March 23, 2020   DIFFERENCE 
 
WHEAT: (bu)          $4.23-4.57  $4.45-4.79 $0.22 higher  
 
MILO: (cwt)             $5.52-5.96  $5.16-5.52 $0.36 to $0.44 lower 
 
SOYBEANS: (bu)    $7.51-8.03  $7.59-8.19 $0.08 to $0.16 higher 
 
CORN: (bu)              $3.59-3.89   $3.35-3.59 $0.02 to $0.06 lower 
 
COTTON: (lb)           62.91 cents    47.15 cents 15.76 cents lower 
 
OKC WEST (EL RENO) STEER CALVES AND YEARLINGS: 
 
Medium & Large Frame No. 1 Muscle Thickness (500-600 lb) Calves 
  (2-04-20)  $164.00-$179.00 Wtd. Avg. $169.13 
  (3-18-20)  $151.00 Wtd. Avg. $151.00 
 
Yearlings 600-700 lbs. 
  (2-04-20)  $145.00-$156.00 Wtd. Avg. $150.83 
  (3-18-20)  $111.00-$128.00 Wtd. Avg. $121.48 
 
Six weekly Oklahoma Market Reports were sent to 4,284 subscribers (up from 3,715) in Feb.  
 
The voice messaging system was accessed 5,336 times in Feb. 2020 and 6,662 Mar. 1-23, 2020. 
 
Hay Report: Alfalfa and hay trade movement was at a standstill again this week, trade remains 
steady. Most of the Alfalfa quoted at the top of the price ranges, had to be flawless. Heavy 
rainfall across the trade area has hampered hay trade and movement. Producers are about a 
month and a half way from new crop hay and hoping markets will have come back to some sort 
of normalcy. Warmer weather especially overnight is needed for this to happen. 
 
     



I-1 
 

  
 
 
 

 

 
 

AEMS Division Monthly Activities 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, 
Food, and Forestry 

April 8, 2020 Board Report for the 
Agricultural Environmental Management Services 

Division - Activities from 
Feb. 10 through Mar 15, 2020 

Meet the new Director of AEMS Teena Gunter 
 
 

 

Meet Nadia Richomd AEMS new Admin Technician 

 
 
 



I-2 
 

 February 28, 2020 & March 13, 2020 – A representative from the AEMS division participated in 
conference calls with OSU, USDA APHIS, and ODAFF to discuss the Swine Research Project.  

 
 March 12, 2020 – A representative from the AEMS division worked at the OSU-ODAFF Swine 

Research Project site. 
 
 Division staff continue to manage programs, including reviewing engineering and other technical documents, 

reviewing different types of annual reports, working complaints, conducting annual inspections and following-up 
on investigations.   

 
AgPDES Permitting Activities 
 

 Number of AgPDES CAFO Authorizations this reporting period: 0 
 Number of AgPDES PGP Authorizations this reporting period: 0 
 Number of AgPDES CGP Authorizations this reporting period: 1 

 
 
Complaints and Inspections 

 
A summary of the complaints received and investigated plus all the inspections and technical assistance 
conducted by the ODAFF AEMS Staff for this reporting period: 
 

9 Complaints received and investigated this reporting period. 
2 Complaints closed this reporting period 

Complaints Received - Breakdown 
Cattle - 6 
Swine – 0 
Poultry- 1 
Other - 2 

46 Year to date complaints received in FY 20 
42 Year to date complaints closed in FY 20 
55  LMFO/CAFO inspections, plus technical assistance 

286  Poultry inspections and technical assistance 
 

CAFO and LMFO Activities - Month and Fiscal Year 2020 
 

 Feb 10 – Mar 15,  2020 FY 20 Total 
Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 31 90 
Annual Inspections 43 408 
Carcass Disposal Inspections 22 169 
Technical Assistance with Contacts 12 111 
Site Visit/Review – No contact made 9 44 

 
 

Poultry Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2020 
 Feb 10 – Mar 15, 2020     FY 20 Total 
Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 8 48 
Annual Poultry Inspections 101 402 
Poultry Technical Assistance 185 1129 
Soil Samples Collected 140 276 
Site Visit/Review – No contact made  69 565 
Construction Stormwater Inspection 0 1 
Eucha-Spavinaw CNMP Written 39 37 
New PFO License Pre-Site Inspections 0 3 

 



I-3 
 

 

FY13-FY19 Trends - Licensed/Permitted Operations 

                      
 

                                        
 
 
Respectfully 
 

 
  

 
Teena G Gunter 
AEMS Division 

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost…

Private PWAs

Commercial…

AgPDES CAFO…

AgPDES PGPs

AgPDES CGPs

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650

FY19
FY18
FY 17
FY 16
FY 15
FY 14
FY 13

587

203

58

88 7

373

127

26
15

34

Current FY 20 AEMS Numbers

PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost Facilities

Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs

AgPDES CAFO GPs

AgPDES PGPs

AgPDES CGPs



J-1  

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

  
APRIL 2020 BOARD REPORT  

REGARDING FEBRUARY 15, 2020 THROUGH MARCH 20, 2020 ACTIVITIES 
OF THE           

 OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 

ACTIONS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 
 

Matter  Type of Resolution  Amount  
Brian Cox Stipulation $200.00 
Tony Nguyen Stipulation $5,000.00 
Fong Moua Stipulation $200.00 
Gene Shed Stipulation $1,000.00 
Todd Harvey Stipulation $250.00 
Sipcam Agro USA, Inc.  Stipulation $1,000.00 
Natalie Wheeler Stipulation $250.00 
Scott Roundebush Stipulation $250.00 
Clinton Abernathy Stipulation $250.00 
Advanced Auto Parts Stipulation $525.00 
U. S. Applicators, LLC Stipulation $1,000.00 
Pipeline Maintenance Serv. Consent Order $500.00 

 
 

CONTRACTS REVIEWED OR DRAFTED (42): 
 

Forestry - 2 
Market Development - 6 
Wildlife - 29 
Food Safety - 1 
Admin - 2 
CPS - 2 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCEEDINGS: 
 

ODAFF v. Spectrum Division of United Industries, OGC 18-434: Briefed and awaiting 
ALJ decision. 
ODAFF v. Spectrum Division of United Industries, OGC 18-435: Briefed and awaiting 
ALJ decision. 
ODAFF v. Spectrum Division of United Industries, OGC 18-436: Briefed and awaiting 
ALJ decision. 



J-2  

ODAFF v. Spectrum Division of United Industries, OGC 18-438: Briefed and awaiting 
ALJ decision. 
ODAFF v. Spectrum Division of United Industries, OGC 18-528: Briefed and awaiting 
ALJ decision. 
ODAFF v. King, Alan, OGC-17-479: Initiated individual proceedings. Scheduling Order 
issued. Set for hearing June 4, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Enterprise Grain Co. LLC, OGC-19-567: Initiated individual proceedings. 
Negotiations ongoing. 
ODAFF v. Fairbanks Scale, OGC-19-609: Initiated individual proceedings. Service 
attempts ongoing. 
ODAFF v. Mansion Farms, OGC-19-319: Initiated individual proceedings. Scheduling 
Order issued. Set for hearing June 4, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Terry Vigil, OGC-19-606: Scheduling Order issued. Set for hearing May 7, 
2020. 
ODAFF v. Hitch Enterprises, OGC-19-882. Initiated individual proceedings. Negotiations 
ongoing. 
ODAFF v. Gerald Wilson, OGC-19-212. Initiated individual proceedings. Negotiations 
ongoing. 
ODAFF v. Robinson Brothers, OGC-19-823. Scheduling Order issued. Set for hearing 
July 2, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Seaboard, OGC 19-388. Initiated individual proceedings. Negotiations 
ongoing. 
W.L. Hardesty, et al v. ODAFF, OGC-19-___. Petition for Declaratory Ruling. Order 
issued. Initial appearance before ALJ set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Mary Jo Collum, OGC-19-961: Negotiations ongoing. Prehearing conference 
set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Raab Aviation, OGC-19-676: Negotiations ongoing. Prehearing conference set 
for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Lawn Guy, OGC-19-549: Negotiations ongoing. Hearing scheduled for May 7, 
2020. 
ODAFF v. Mosquitno, LLC, OGC-19-979: Negotiations ongoing. Prehearing conference 
set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Flea Stoppers, OGC-19-982: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing 
conference set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Fred Schmedt, OGC-19-833: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing 
conference set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Marty Clinton, OGC-19-839: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing 
conference set for May 7, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Raab Aviation, OGC-19-821: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing 
conference set for June 4, 2020. 
ODAFF v. Dr. Earth, OGC-19-677, OGC-19-678, OGC-19-679, OGC-19-680, OGC-19-
681, OGC-19-682: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing conference set for June 4, 
2020. 
ODAFF v. Stet. Corp., OGC-19-886: Negotiations ongoing. Prehearing conference set for 
May 7, 2020. 



J-3  

ODAFF v. AgWerx Aviation, OGC-19-894: Initiated individual proceedings. Prehearing 
conference set for May 7, 2020. 

 
 

OTHER ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS: 
 

Kenneth Dale Toon dba Wild Boar Ridge Hunting Ranch v. ODAFF, McCurtain County 
Case No. CV-2018-069. Petition for Declaratory Relief, etc. (Filed but not served on 
ODAFF as of 3/25/19). 
W.L. Hardesty, et al., v. ODAFF and Cesar Cervantes, Okmulgee County District Court 
Case No. CJ-2019-040: Petition served. Answer filed. Motion to Dismiss heard and denied 
September 4, 2019. Pending filing of Answer within 20 days by Cervantes. 
Aaron Grey v. ODAFF, Oklahoma Merit Protection Commission Case No. MPC-20-002: 
Discovery requests and depositions pending.  Hearing date set. 
ODAFF v. Urban Agrarian, LLC and Matthew R. Burch, Oklahoma County District 
Court Case No. CJ-2019-6533: Petition filed. Service made on Defendant. Agreed Journal 
Entry of Judgment signed and filed. 
Kirk Marshall v. ODAFF, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CJ-2020-1347: 
Petition served. Answer drafted and prepared for filing. Pending preparation of Motion to 
Dismiss. 

 
 

MEETINGS: 
 

Date Activity 
February 17, 2020 Senate Agriculture Committee 
February 17, 2020 House Agriculture Committee 
February 18, 2020 Leadership Oklahoma Spring Issues Summit 
February 19, 2020 OU Law Career Fair 
February 21, 2020 Oklahoma Cooperative Association regarding farmers markets 
February 24, 2020 Senate Agriculture Committee 
February 24, 2020 House Agriculture Committee 
February 25, 2020 OWRB regarding Delaware County Order 
February 25, 2020 EPA Region 6 regarding compliance 
February 25, 2020 Collections Meeting 
February 25, 2020 Corteva Agri and State Senator 
February 26, 2020 Oklahoma Team Watershed Implementation Plan 
February 27, 2020 White Buffalo 
February 27, 2020 OGC Staff 
February 28, 2020 White Buffalo 
March 3, 2020 State Senator 
March 4, 2020 MIO Anniversary Event 
March 4, 2020 State Board of Agriculture 
March 4, 2020 Forest Regeneration Center 



J-4  

March 5, 2020 Pet Breeders Staff 
March 5, 2020 Illinois River Working Group 
March 6, 2020 Interview Galt Employee 
March 9, 2020 State Representative 
March 10, 2020 AEMS Staff 
March 10, 2020 Director’s Meeting 
March 11, 2020 Illinois River Watershed Water Quality Standards Update 
March 11, 2020 OGC Laserfiche Process Demonstration 
March 12, 2020 Commissioners of Land Office 
March 16, 2020 Director’s Meeting 
March 17, 2020 White Buffalo 
March 17, 2020 Director’s Meeting 
March 18, 2020 EPA Region 6 AgPDES Conference 

 
 

RULE ACTIVITIES: 
 

Chapter 2. Fees (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature 
February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative 
Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 10. Agricultural Products (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules 
adopted by Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor 
and Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020.  
Chapter 13. Fuel Alcohol (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and 
Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 15. Animal Industry (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and 
Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 17. Water Quality (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Legislature February 
14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules 
February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 18. Carcass Disposal (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and 
Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 30. Consumer Protection (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules 
adopted by Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor 
and Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 



J-5  

Chapter 37. Food Safety (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature 
February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative 
Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 40. Market Development (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted 
by Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and 
Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 44. AgPDES (Permanent FY 2020):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature 
February 14, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative 
Rules February 14, 2020. 
Chapter 55. Commercial Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters (Permanent FY 
2020):  Permanent rules adopted by Board February 5, 2020.  Agency Rule Report 
submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 14, 2020.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 14, 2020. 

OHRC 
Chapter 15.  Licensing (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules adopted by 
Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  Agency Rule Report 
submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 25.  Entries and Declarations (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules 
adopted by Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  Agency 
Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  Statement 
of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 35.  General Conduct (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules adopted by 
Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  Agency Rule Report 
submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 45.  Prohibited Practices and Equine Testing (Permanent FY 2020): 
Permanent rules adopted by Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 
2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 
2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 
25, 2020.  
Chapter 50.  Human Substance Abuse Testing (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent 
rules adopted by Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  
Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  
Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 
2020. 
Chapter 60.  Running the Race (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules adopted by 
Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  Agency Rule Report 
submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 70.  Objections and Protests; Hearings and Appeals (Permanent FY 
2020): Permanent rules adopted by Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 
20, 2020.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 



J-6  

25, 2020.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules 
February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 75.  Oklahoma-Bred Program (Permanent FY 2020): Permanent rules 
adopted by Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission on February 20, 2020.  Agency 
Rule Report submitted to the Governor and Legislature February 25, 2020.  Statement 
of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 25, 2020. 
Chapter 80.  Gaming Licensing Requirements (Permanent FY 2020): Public 
hearing conducted on March 9, 2020. 
Chapter 85.  Gaming Machine Specifications and Use and Operation 
Requirements (Permanent FY 2020):  Public hearing conducted on March 9, 2020. 
Chapter 90.  Gaming Operations (Permanent FY 2020):  Public hearing conducted 
on March 9, 2020. 

 
 

OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS (15): 
 

Admin (2)  
AEMS (2) 
Animal Industries (1) 
CPS (5) 
Forestry (1) 
OHRC (1) 
Pet Breeder (3) 

 
 

OKLAHOMA HORSE RACING COMMISSION 
 

Litigation: OQHRA v. OHRC, Oklahoma County Case No. CV-2019-1513-643: Hearing 
held June 28, 2019. Order of Dismissal entered. Petition in Error from OQHRA filed in 
Supreme Court. OHRC Response to Petition in Error filed. Designation of Record filed and 
Record completed. Case placed on “fast-track” docket by Order of the Oklahoma Supreme 
Court. Plaintiff’s Motion to Retain in the Supreme Court DENIED. Case assigned to 
Oklahoma Court of Appeals. 
Litigation: Rick Robinson v. OHRC, Rogers County District Court Case No. CV-2019-
179: Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO 
hearing held October 11, 2019. TRO entered. Hearing on permanent injunction held October 
24, 2019. Injunction Denied. Further action pending. 
Litigation: Alfredo Gomez and Cruz Villafranco v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District 
Court Case No. CV-2020-430: Petition served. Motion to Dismiss filed and set for hearing 
June 25, 2020. 
Litigation: Cruz Villafranco v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-
2020-430: Petition for Temporary Restraining Order. Served. Emergency heard and denied. 
Pending other action. 
Litigation: Mary Meza v. OHRC, Oklahoma County Case No. CV-2019-2781: Petition 
filed. Motion to Dismiss filed and set for hearing June 25, 2020. 



J-7  

Litigation: Samuel Valdivia v. OHRC, Sequoyah County Case No. CV-2020-26. Petition 
for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction served and emergency hearing 
held. Temporary Restraining Order entered. Hearing set for March 19, 2020 not held due to 
closure of the Sequoyah County Courthouse due to COVID-19. Pending other action. 
Litigation: Oscar Nunez v. OHRC, Oklahoma County Case No. CV-2020-449: Petition 
filed and served. Pending Answer. 
OHRC Round Table discussion 
Hearings at Will Rogers Downs 
Hearings at Remington Park 
OHRC regular meeting 
Prepare cases for presentation 
Provide discovery to opposing counsel 
Research as requested for OHRC Executive Director 
Discuss OHRC meeting 
Discuss OHRC rule comments 
Research certain approval authority of Commission director 
Discuss rule amendments with Commission director 

 
 

OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

Discussed certified applicator licensing with citizen 
Review ODAFF rules in response to inquiry from OSDH 
Discuss certain Food Safety rules with Director 
AgPDES review and discussions with staff 
Interviews with potential externs 
AALA Webinar 
Collections 
Food for Thought webinar 
ALJ Docket 
Discuss various Human Resource matters 
Discuss issue with CPS personnel 
EPA conference call 
OBA Indian Law section webcast  
Open Records inspection with outside attorney 
Discuss ImageNet bills for Laserfiche with Administration 
Discuss hemp legislation with CPS 
Meet with Executive Office regarding AEMS 
Discuss poultry nutrient management plan legislation 
Discuss revisions to AEDB legislation 
Discuss essential infrastructure 
Respond to request from state information reporting service  
Respond to question relating to farm corporations 
Discuss terms of contract between ODAFF and WSD 
Discuss rule amendments with division director 



J-8  

Discuss press poultry questions with Executive Office 
Discuss farmers market/farmers hub bill 
Discuss Forestry checks to fire departments 
Sign AgPDES documents 
Review and revise HB3314 Home Bakery Act legislation 
Discuss pheromone legislation with CPS 
Discuss Curtis Smith Open Records request 
Prepare revisions to meat definitions 
Prepare revisions to HB2008 regarding city ordinances 
Discuss AgPDES and compost facility 
Revise farmers market/farmers hub legislation 
Discuss farm corporations 
Discuss various contract issues with Market Development 
Discuss board minutes with Executive Office 
Discuss emaciated horses complaint 
Discuss biologics with AIS 
Discuss legislation with Executive Office 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1021 Jacob Farms LLC unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1028 Liquid Fence Company unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1025 BASF Corporation unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1015 Seaboard Beelman unauthorized discharge 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1020 Control Solutions Inc. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1033 Voluntary Purchasing Groups unregistered 
pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1016 Hartz Mountain Corp. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1017 Zep Commercial Sales and Service unregistered 
pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1019 Petro-Canada Lubricants Inc. unregistered 
pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1018 Becker Underwood unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1022 Jacob Farms LLC unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-20-003 Simplot J.R. Co. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-20-047 Seaboard Lindsey #355 unauthorized discharge 
Close no action taken OGC-20-045 Tri State Pest Management no certified applicator 
and incomplete records 
Close no action taken OGC-20-007 Liquid Fence Co. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-20-008 Senoret Chemical Co. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-20-010 Spray Nine Corporation unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-20-011 Guaranteed Horse Products LLC unregistered 
pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1031 Bonide Products Inc. unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1021 BASF Corporation unregistered pesticide 
Close no action taken OGC-19-1034 Liquid Fence Co. unregistered pesticide 
Discuss fuel alcohol law repeal with Corporation Commission 
Discuss Dollar General cases 



J-9  

Draft amendments to HB3786 
Discuss declaratory action 
Discuss a lockbox for ODAFF with Administration 
Discuss ethics rules for employees 
Discuss renewal for Forestry contract 
Discuss ice cream and dairy products with Food Safety 
Interview various potential law clerks 
Discuss, research and draft legislative language for waste by pollution issues 
Discuss heat treat for bed bugs legislation 
Review and discuss division Continuity of Operations Plan 
Review and discuss Coronavirus information 
Discuss contract addendum with Conservation Commission 
Discuss Executive Office travel with Administration 
Discuss potential contingencies for processing plants 
Set up employees to work from home 
Review SB661 regarding Open Meetings Act 
Discuss and review Hanor investigation plan 
Review agriculture essential services letter to Governor 
Discuss poultry grower transfer application 
Discuss poultry registration, education, and setbacks with citizen 
Discuss essential infrastructure with Executive Office 
Review Oklahoma Bar Journal 
Review poultry as a CAFO according to EPA guidance 
 

COMMERCIAL PET BREEDER AND ANIMAL SHELTER ACTIVITIES: 
 
Discuss AEMS issues with Judi 
Discuss various pet breeder letters 
Discuss Letter of Warning with pet breeder 
Review multiple pet breeder inspection reports 
Review pet breeder complaints 

 
 

Complaints 
  Current Fiscal Year 
Received 7 24 
Closed 10 29 
Investigations 3 30 
Follow-up 8 38 
Open Complaints 26  
  



J-10  

 
  
   

Current Active Licenses  
Breeders 165 

  

Shelters 60   

 
 
  

Shelter Inspection 
  Current Fiscal Year    
Pre-Inspection 1 2 
Annual Inspection 1 7 
Follow-up 0 4 
Technical Assistance 9 62 
Close-out 0 0 
   

Breeder Inspection 
  Current Fiscal Year    
Pre-Inspection 0 5 
Annual Inspection 0 6 
Follow-up 0 1 
Technical Assistance 8 61 
Close-out 0 4 

 
 
 

 

  Respectfully Submitted,  
  

         
 
        Teena G. Gunter  
        General Counsel  



K-1  
  

FOOD SAFETY REPORT MARCH 2020  
  
  

  
POULTRY& EGG GRADING, PRODUCE AND ORGANIC SECTION 

  
 

 
Poultry and Egg Section 
In Broken Bow at Tyson Foods, USDA poultry grading was performed by ODAFF inspectors on 
1,040,520 pounds of poultry – whole legs, drumsticks and split breast meat. ODAFF inspectors 
provided USDA Shell Egg grading on 52,337 dozen eggs at Cal-Maine Foods Inc. at Sulphur. 
ODAFF inspectors also provided USDA poultry grading services on poultry products being 
shipped from OK Foods in Muldrow & Heavener. The USDA Federal-State Supervisor 
conducted quarterly audits on ODAFF poultry and shell egg graders under the USDA 
cooperative agreement. 
 
Organic Foods Section 
Organic inspectors completed compliance and certification inspections at: 

• Seven organic crop producers 
• Two organic processers 
• One organic livestock producer 
• Two retail organic inspections 
• The organic section had requests for 4,000 certified organic stickers from Oklahoma 

Certified Organic producers and processors, which display the stickers on all products 
sold, labeled, or represented as Organic across the United States. 

• The organic section had 6 requests for organic crop applications, 2 requests for organic 
processing applications and 2 requests for organic livestock applications. 

 
Produce Safety Section 

• Assisted with Produce Safety Alliance grower courses held in Edmond and Tulsa for 
education and outreach to produce growers  

• Sponsorship, outreach/information table and a produce safety breakout session along with 
a farm tour at the Oklahoma Farmers Market and Agritourism Conference 

• The Produce Safety staff attended the Rural Economic Development and Community 
Garden event at Boley, OK 

• Justin McConaghy attended and spoke at the Mid-Continental Association of Food and 
Drug Officials educational conference 

• Assisted with NASDA workgroup for job position descriptions 
• FDA monthly webinar 
• Conference call with South Central States Produce Safety Programs 

 
 
 
  
  



K-2  
  

 
Oklahoma Meat Inspection Services                                                                           

Investigations and Compliance Activities 
                                                           

Planned Compliance Reviews 09 

Random Compliance Reviews 175 

Person-to-Person Contacts 14 

Special Investigations and/or Projects 04 

Reports of Apparent Violations 02 

Detentions 01 

Consumer Complaints 06 

Verbal Warnings Issued 05 

Letters of Warning Issued 02 

Samples Submitted to Lab for Analysis 00 

Accident Investigations 01 

Administrative Procedures Act 00 

  

The Oklahoma Highway Patrol notified Meat Inspection Compliance of Three (3) 
Truck Accidents involving Feeder Calves & Poultry Products  

See details below:  
ACCIDENT LOCATION  ANIMAL/PRODUCT  DISPOSITION  
US HWY 56 & 64 
N.E. BOISE CITY, OK 

42,800 POUNDS OF FRESH 
PORK BELLIES 

ALL 42,000 POUNDS OF 
FRESH PORK BELLIES 
CONDEMNED AND 
TAKEN TO SEWARD 
COUNTY LANDFILL, 
LIBERAL, KS 

 
Highlighted Activities 

 
During the course of Random Reviews and anonymous Consumer Complaints, 
Compliance and Investigation Services sent out Two (2) Letter of Warning for 
Violations of the Oklahoma Meat Inspection Act and/or State Statutes.     



K-3  
  

 
 

 
Meat Inspection  

 
 

 Meat Sample Activity:    
Samples Submitted for Analysis  11 
Samples Not Analyzed  0 
Samples Analyzed  11 
Samples Non-Compliant  0  
Samples Negative results  11 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Meat Inspection are performing their daily inspection duties on that establishments that are 
open.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



K-4  
  

MEAT INSPECTION 
 

Number of Cattle 880 
Total Beef Condemned 1.000 lbs 

  
Number of Swine 214 

Total Pork Condemned 120 lbs 
  

Number of Sheep and Goats 300 
Total Condemned 0 lbs 

  
Number of Rabbits 0 

Total Condemnations 0 lbs 
  

Number of Exotic Deer 0 
Total Condemnations 0 lbs 

  
TOTAL MEAT INSPECTED 700,500 lbs 

 
 

PROCESSED MEAT INSPECTED 
 

Processed Red Meat 48,035 
Condemned on Reinspection 1,000 lbs 
  
Poultry (Portions) 6,350 lbs 
Condemned on Reinspection 250 lbs 
  
Rabbit Meat 170 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Exotic Deer Meat 0 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
TOTAL PROCESSED MEAT 
INSPECTED 

 
254,405 lbs 

 
 

A total of 22 meat samples were taken with 0 out of compliance. 
 
A total of 5 water samples were taken with 1 out of compliance.   

 
 
 



K-5  
  

DAIRY SECTION 
  
Dairy staff conducted routine inspections at dairy plants and farms, conducted dairy plant 
equipment checks and collected ice cream samples, raw milk and retail milk and milk products 
samples and container samples for laboratory analysis for March. 
 
Dairy staff Gary Lewis recently completed a survey for Kalona Farms. Survey resulted in passing 
scores for sanitation and enforcement compliance these passing scores are listed on FDA's 
Interstate Milk Shippers List website and allows for the interstate shipment of milk produced by 
Oklahoma dairy farmers. 
 
Dairy staff Gary Lewis, Scott Fisher and Pete Echelle recently attended a mandatory FDA training 
course in Austin, Tx. for State Rating officers. State Rating officers (SRO) are listed on the FDA 
Website. State rating officer’s conduct surveys on dairy farms BTU's and milk plants and allows 
for interstate milk shipment. 
 
Milk Pasteurization course scheduled for Oklahoma City Mar. 23-26 was cancelled due to Covid-
19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely,  
  

  
  
Scott Yates 
Director of Food Safety    

  



1 
 

Board Report  
February – March 

 
 
ODAFF Telework and COVID-19  
In an attempt to mitigate the spread of COVID-19, over 98% of ODAFF employees are teleworking. 
The main ODAFF building and the laboratory have been closed and will reopen on April 20th, 
complying with the OKC Shelter-in-Place order by the mayor.  
 
Multiple documents on guidance for COVID-19 agriculturists have been created and can be found on 
the homepage of our website, ag.ok.gov.  
 
 
Agriculture Youth Council | Roundtable and Job Shadow Presentations 
On March 2nd, the 2020 class of AYC came to ODAFF for the last time as a regular session and 
presented their job shadow experiences. These students shadowed two people in the ag industry: one in 
ODAFF and one in a sector of ag of their choosing. The top three AYC members were to present at Ag 
Day at the Capitol, but because this event was 
changed to a virtual event, they will be presenting 
online!  
 
Congratuations to the top three AYC members: 
Landri Chaplin, Colby Cook and Jager Pifer! We 
are so proud of the entire AYC for this year and 
look forward to opening up applications for this 
upcoming school year!  
 
The AYC also participated in a roundtable 
discussion with Sec. Arthur and JanLee Rowlett. 
They had exceptional advice and input on how to 
better the council for the future.  
 
 
Secure Beef Supply Workshop | Colorado  
Morgan Vance, Dr. Hall, Dr. Ruby and Dr. Gorcezyca-Southerland attended a Regional Secure Beef 
Supply workshop in Colorado that focused on the guidance available in the Secure Beef Supply Plan so 
producers, packers, states, and federal animal health officials can work together to further define the 
permit process to move feedlot cattle to harvest during a foot and mouth disease (FMD) outbreak. 
Topics addressed included pre-outbreak steps for feedlots and packers, resources available for enhanced 
biosecurity, disease monitoring, and the current status of surveillance options to demonstrate no 
evidence of FMD infection in cattle. Having the SBS Plan guidance implemented, when possible, prior 
to an FMD outbreak can speed up a successful response and eventually enable the issuance of animal 
movement permits. 
 
 
 



2 
 

Wheat Challenge | Gov. Stitt and Lt. Gov. Pinnell’s Wheat Faceoff  
Governor Kevin Stitt and Lt. Governor Matt Pinnell made a stop at ODAFF to check on their wheat for 
the Governor's Wheat Challenge! This fall, Governor Stitt and Lt. Governor Pinnell made their picks to 
determine the best wheat, based off of yield, flavor profile and other factors — Smith’s Gold, chosen by 
Gov. Stitt and Baker’s Ann, chosen by Lt. Gov. Pinnell. The wheat is currently growing outside of 
Oklahoma Department of Agriculture Food and Forestry. 
 
During their visit, they heard from Sec. Blayne Arthur and Oklahoma Wheat Commission Executive 
Director Mike Schulte about the industry and then had the opportunity to try each of the wheat varieties 
in loaves of bread! 
Oklahoma is ranked No. 5 in the nation for wheat production, and wheat is Oklahoma’s largest cash 
crop, with more than 5 million acres of winter wheat sown annually. 
Keeps your eyes peeled to see the wheat growth progress at the ODAFF building! May the best wheat 
win!  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

March Traveling Board Meeting | Made in Oklahoma Event 
The Board of Agriculture and ODAFF Directors traveled to Goldsby for the Made in Oklahoma Expo, 
the board meeting and to visit the ODAFF Forest Regeneration Center. The MIO Expo was a day of 
food and fun where we explored the culinary offerings of over 50 Made in Oklahoma companies.  
 
For more pictures, visit https://odaff.smugmug.com/ODAFF-Events-/Made-in-Oklahoma-Expo--Board-
Trip/ 
 
 
 
 

 

https://odaff.smugmug.com/ODAFF-Events-/Made-in-Oklahoma-Expo--Board-Trip/
https://odaff.smugmug.com/ODAFF-Events-/Made-in-Oklahoma-Expo--Board-Trip/


1  

APRIL 8, 2020 BOARD MEETING 
 

 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 

 
 

AEMS 
A request for $45,000.00 
Professional Services – The AEMS Division will soon be completing a four year contract 
with a Consultant who was hired to review Comprehensive Nutrient Management Plans 
(CNMP), Nutrient Management Plans (NMP); plus performance of duties in the areas of 
poultry, swine, cattle, Best Management Practices and in compliance, technical assistance 
and reviews or other related actions as requested by the Director of the AEMS Division.  
The AEMS Division is requesting approval of $45,000 to solicit for a Nutrient Management 
Specialist, an Independent Contractor to development the plans with options to renew.    
 
Failure to hire a Consultant to perform these activities will result in noncompliance with 
the laws that regulate poultry, swine and cattle industry  

 
A request for $48,276.00 
Professional Services – Request approval of renewal, not to exceed $48,276.00 for the 
OSU Poultry Education program. The funds are appropriated dollars. The funding is for 
Poultry Waste Management training, as needed, for operators of poultry feeding 
operations and land applicators of poultry waste, to attend educational training on poultry 
waste management which is provided by Oklahoma State University through the 
Oklahoma Cooperative Extension Service. 
 
Failure to renew will result in noncompliance with the law that regulates poultry feeding 
operations operators and land applicators of poultry waste. 
 

 A request for $170,000 
Professional Services – FY21 request for approval of $170,000 to fund MOA with OWRB 
to sample LMFO groundwater monitoring wells around lagoons.  Funding is provided 
from EPA and dispersed directly to OWRB through OSEE.   

 
 
Consumer Protection Services 
Audio Visual Equipment --$10,500.00 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for 

approval. 
 

The audiovisual equipment will provide with opportunities to provide training to our field staff 
and to better participate with USDA, FDA, EPA and Kelly Computer Systems.  Currently in order 
to provide training to field staff you have to bring them together physically at a site which is 
expensive.  This will provide with an opportunity to do a webinar style training, which is more 
efficient.   
 



2  

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
 

Without the audiovisual equipment, we will be more limited in the trainings we can do for our 
field staff including safety trainings.  It also limits us to some on our meetings with USDA, 
EPA, FDA, and Kelly Computer Systems.  

 
Oklahoma State University Pesticide Program Contract Approval --$130,000.00 

 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 

for approval. 
 

Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 3-82 (B), applicators are required to be certified in a category or 
categories in which they make pesticide applications.  ODAFF administers these exams under 
state law and delegated federal authority from EPA.  Additionally, the law also requires a 
practical training exam after the written exams have been passed for certain categories such as 
fumigation, structural and general pest.  To support the certification and training program the 
EPA grant includes monies for development of study manuals specific for each exam and for 
a practical exam when necessary.  Other uses of the EPA grant monies include assisting 
applicators, owners and farmers with compliance for the federal worker protection standards.  
In order to comply with these requirements assistance was requested from Oklahoma State 
University (OSU) for the purpose of study manuals, WPS compliance support and providing a 
venue for the practical examination school. 
 
OSU as a land grant university has proven expertise in each of the pesticide categories and 
education that lends itself well into writing study material for the written examinations.  They 
also have a state of the art training facility for practical exams that allows each applicator to 
experience many different application sites during an exam.  This has resulted in two positive 
outcomes for ODAFF.  The first is a large decrease in the number of complaints which frees 
up agency time and resources.  The second is the ability to do these exams as a group instead 
of individually for each applicator which requires fewer personnel to complete the task.  
Finally, since education is one of the universities main purposes they are an excellent source 
to provide training for the federal worker protection standard.   
 

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
 

Currently, ODAFF does not have the resources to develop, print and distribute study 
material for the certification and training program.  The agency also does not have enough 
staff to monitor all practical exams individually so additional staff would be necessary 
without OSU.  The federal WPS program would also be problematic without the 
assistance of OSU.  OSU provides a neutral party to review a facilities compliance with 
WPS and provide assistance and education to show them how to comply with federal law.   
 
OSU provides critical support in the pesticide program through training material and 
assistance that would be difficult for the agency to provide without additional personnel.  
The loss of OSU’s assistance would place a great strain on ODAFF’s limited resources.  

 
 
 
 



3  

Oklahoma State University Soil Fertility Research --$450,000.00 
 

1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 
for approval. 

 
Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 8-77.7 (A), ODAFF is required to collect an inspection fee of $1.00 per 
ton of which $0.50 per ton shall be forwarded directly to a special Soil Fertility Research 
Account in the Department of Plant and Soil Sciences of the Division of Agricultural Sciences 
and Natural Resources at Oklahoma State University (OSU) for the purpose of conducting 
soil fertility research and extension involving efficient fertilizer use for agronomic crops and 
forages and groundwater and surface water protection from plant food nutrients.  Though 
tonnage amounts vary each year due to when a crop is planted, commodity prices, fertilizer 
prices and the weather we use the upper range of inspection fees paid annually to determine 
the amount of $450,000.00 that could potentially be paid out to OSU.  However, the actual 
amount paid to OSU will be based on the amount of inspection fees paid to ODAFF. 
 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   

 
This is a statutory requirement of the Oklahoma Fertilizer Act and needs to be done to further 
research to prevent the pollution of lands and waters of Oklahoma from fertilizers. 

 
Unwanted Pesticide Disposal Program --$350,000.00 

 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 

for approval. 
 

Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 3-82(J) (3), ODAFF is required to collect a registration fee of $210.00 for 
each pesticide or device label registered.  A portion of these fees, in the amount of 
$300,000.00 annually, shall be dedicated for conducting programs for unwanted pesticide 
disposal.  This amount shall be deposited into the State Department of Agriculture Unwanted 
Pesticide Disposal Fund and shall be dedicated for this use only.  Since not all of the 
$300,000.00 in the funds is utilized each year they are then carried forward into the next fiscal 
year and the amount available for unwanted pesticide disposal in fiscal year 2019 is 
$350,000.00.   
 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   

 
This is a statutory requirement of the Combined Pesticide Law and needs to be done to 
prevent the pollution of lands and waters of Oklahoma from unwanted pesticides. 

 
Ranch Scale Truck Bed Request --$30,000.00 

 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 

for approval. 
 

ODAFF CPS currently has a 15-year-old ranch scale vehicles that has broken down and is 
being replaced.  To complete the replacement we also need to purchase a bed for carrying, 
loading and unloading the weights.  The loss of the use of this truck will affect our ability to 
complete the testing of ranch scales in Oklahoma. 



4  

2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   
 

This vehicle bed is needed to be able to complete our inspections its loss will affect our ability 
to test ranch scales. 

 
Small Scales --$26,000.00 

 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 

for approval. 
 

Many of the scales used by the inspectors for the small-scale weights and measures inspections are 
old and in need of updating.  The new scales will help inspectors better perform their job duties 
checking random and standard packed products. 
 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   

 
Without new scales, we will have a higher incident of them breaking down and needing 
repairs as well as potentially needing replaced.     

 
Verizon Wireless --$25,000.00 

 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines 

for approval. 
 

Verizon is used as the main form of communication for field staff and office staff.  Additionally, 
with the Agency moving forward with online services having access to a mobile wireless for field 
staff is essential to their job duties.   
 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.   

 
Without wireless there would be no way to communicate or move forward with our online 
system for inspections.  Additionally, it will slow response times to complaints including 
those that are time sensitive like human health related and environmental.  
 
Purchase of fifteen (15) Weight Sets for CPS field inspectors - $ 9600.00 
 
South Dakota Agricultural Laboratories testing fees for pesticide samples related to the 
new dicamba and 2,4D product - $9,800.00 
 
ESRI software maintenance contract for FY2021 to support GIS systems for the agency- 
$4,000.00 
 
OSU laboratory testing fees for soil and water samples related to environmental pollution 
investigations - $9,800.00 
 

 
 
 
 



5  

Forestry Services 
FY 21 - $55,000 
Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses (Federal Grant) – Justification:  This allows the 
OFS Incident Management Team and fire personnel to utilize Collector, giving our 
firefighters real-time wildland fire data exchange.  Data collected from the Collector 
application gives firefighters an advantage on fighting fires and increases overall firefighter 
and public safety.  

 
FY 20 - $9,500  
Purchase soil media to grow containerized seedlings at FRC and FTIC for landowners. 
Justification: Soil media is needed to grow seedlings for conservation plantings.  Without 
soil media for the containers, we would not be able to grow containerized seedlings, 
which may lead to lack of seedlings and planting failure. 
   
FY 20 - $15,000 
Purchase the pouring of a concrete pad in an existing pole barn.  Justification: Numerous 
landowners are requesting seedlings grown in containers for their harsher sites and we are 
unable to meet the demand now due to the lack of infrastructure for the equipment. We 
have the container filling equipment, we simply don’t have a structure solid location to set 
it up.  This concrete pad will allow us to set up and use the container filling equipment, 
which in return will meet landowner needs and save resources and time from having to do 
it all by hand. 

 
FY 20 – $25,000 
Contract certified SRS cruisers from the State of Alabama to complete FIA plots in 
Oklahoma. Justification: Oklahoma's FIA program is approximately 950 plots behind 
schedule due to chronic staffing issues. Only Foresters who have completed the rigorous 
USFS-SRS certification process can complete FIA plots. Alabama’s FIA crew is ahead of 
schedule and has a surplus of USFS-SRS certified cruisers that could help OFS catch up. 
At OFS current rate, OFS cannot spend the money given by the USFS for the FIA 
program before the grant runs out and OFS will lose/give back, a large sum of money, 
which could be used to hire the Alabama cruisers to help OFS catch up.  

 
Market Development  

FY2020 – 32 hotel rooms (at the state per diem rate) and meeting room for Ag in the 
Classroom Teacher Road Trip - $6,910.00 
 
Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Grants - $42,466 
This project is entirely funded by the Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Center 
Development Revolving Fund. This grant project with the Oklahoma Grape Industry 
Council will promote and encourage growth and development of the grape and wine 
industries in Oklahoma through educational and marketing campaigns along with increasing 
the positive economic impact of the wine industry in Oklahoma. If this proposed expense is 
not approved and therefore the project is not completed, the State not only loses money 
immediately that is important to the grape and wine industry through the economic impact, 
but also runs the risk of not being awarded money from the Oklahoma Viticulture and 
Enology Center Development Revolving Fund in the future.  



6  

FY2020 – Loklahoma – Billboard, social media and print advertising - $20,000.00 
 
FY2020 - Made in Oklahoma Bags for re-sale to MIO program participants. - $6,000.00   
 
FY2020 – Ag in the Classroom Educational Resources for students – ABC’s Coloring book 
and Rt. 66 resource - $5,550.66 

 
 
Wildlife Services 

$769,000 – Cooperative Service agreement with USDA APHIS Wildlife Services to provide 
wildlife damage management activities to farmers and ranchers in Oklahoma. Activities are 
related to damages incurred from feral swine, beavers, coyotes, and avian predators. 
  
ANNUAL WORK PLAN PERIOD: JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021  
A. Objective: To provide for the protection of human health and safety, agricultural 

interests, and other private and public property from wildlife damage.  

B. Anticipated Project Results and Benefits: Through application of a variety of wildlife 

damage management methods and techniques, a reduction in the loss of resources and the 

protection of human health and safety are anticipated.  

C. Plan of Action:  

1. Number and type of personnel: One wildlife Biologist. Fourteen Wildlife Specialists and 
one seasonal Wildlife Specialist where a need exists. One Feral hog Troubleshooter in 
southern, OK. 
 
2. Conduct a Mobile Forces program (Mobile Forces Wildlife Specialists) as established by 
the Legislature.  
 
3. Use of special equipment: All legal and authorized equipment, including, but not limited 
to, aircraft.  
 
D. Monitoring of Accomplishments: The Wildlife Services (WS) employees will complete 
all required reports of the WS program documenting activities and accomplishments. 
Periodic reports of activities and accomplishments will be provided upon request to the 
ODAFF.  
 
BUDGET: Funds provided by ODAFF will be applied toward the salary and operating 
expenses of the WS employees. ODAFF will be billed quarterly on an annual basis for the 
expenditures incurred by WS/ not to exceed $769,000 for State FY 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7  

$ 39,500 - ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval to purchase four (4) Kawasaki 
4010 4x4 side by side UTV’s. These UTV’s will allow the wildlife specialist to move 
trapping equipment into remote locations unable to be accessed with a traditional vehicle, 
additionally they will be used to survey land looking for wildlife damage more efficiently.   
Not approving of this purchase will mean we continue operating in a less efficient 
way.  Currently, traps are moved manually into remote locations increasing the risk of 
injury to the employee and surveying for wildlife damage by foot decreases productivity.  
This way of operation is less efficient and costs the agency more dollars due to longer and 
fewer visits daily. 
 
Wildlife Services is requesting approval for a cooperative agreement with the City of 
Norman in the amount of $20,000 to be paid to ODAFF/WS for services rendered for 1 year 
by WS Staff to aid in the reduction of wildlife while using approved methods.  This 
agreement will help offset expenses incurred by the Department.  Failure to approve this 
agreement would create a human health and safety hazard to the citizens in the City of 
Norman. 
 



BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

 
APPROVAL OF CASES 

ON THIS 5th day of April 2020 the Office of General Counsel of the Oklahoma 

Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry brought for consideration before the State Board 

of Agriculture those certain cases summarized on Exhibit A hereto which cases have been 

resolved by stipulation or consent order.  The attached Exhibit A summarizes each action by case 

name, case number, case type and amount received as a stipulated administrative penalty or by 

consent order. 

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the State Board of Agriculture 

that the resolution of each of the cases summarized on Exhibit A hereto is hereby approved in all 

aspects; that this order shall be deemed the final agency order for each such case; and that the 

penalty imposed by each such stipulation or consent order is hereby adopted and incorporated 

herein by reference to Exhibit A hereto. 

WITNESS My Hand and Official Seal this 5th day of April 2020. 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      Blayne Arthur 
      President 
      State Board of Agriculture 
 
       
 



Exhibit A 
Board of Agriculture 
April 5, 2020 
 
Cases Resolved by Stipulation 
 

Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
Name       File No.   Division            Amount 

           Brian Cox     OGC-19-312   AEMS   $200.00 
Fong Moua     OGC-19-217   AEMS   $200.00 
Gene Shed     OGC-19-213   AMES           $1,000.00 
       
Consumer Protection Services 
Name       File No.   Division            Amount 

            Advance Auto Parts    OGC-19-630   CPS              $525.00 
Clinton Abernathy    OGC-19-835   CPS              $250.00   
Todd Harvey      OGC-19-695   CPS   $250.00 
Scott Roundebush    OGC-19-832   CPS              $250.00 
Sipcam Agro USA, Inc.    OGC-19-696   CPS           $1,000.00 

          U. S. Applicators, LLC     OGC-19-243   CPS           $1,000.00 
Natalie Wheeler    OGC-19-831   CPS              $250.00 
       

Cases Resolved by Consent Order 
 
Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Consent Order 

 
Consumer Protection Services  
Name       File No.   Division            Amount 
Pipeline Maintenance Service  19-851    CPS   $500.00  

 


























































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes
	Tab A - Administrative Services
	Tab B - Laboratory Services
	Tab C - Forestry Services
	Tab D - CPS
	Tab E - Animal Industry
	Tab F - Wildlife Services
	Tab G - Statistics
	Tab H - Market Development
	Tab I - AEMS
	Tab J - Office of General Counsel
	Tab K - Food Safety
	Tab L - Communications
	Purchasing
	Stipulations Approval of Cases
	Stipulations - Tab 1 - AEMS - Brian Cox
	Stipulations - Tab 2 - AEMS - Fong Moua
	Stipulations - Tab 3 - AEMS - Gene Shed
	Stipulations - Tab 4 - CPS - Advance Auto Parts
	Stipulations - Tab 5 - CPS - Clinton Abernathy
	Stipulations - Tab 6 - CPS - Todd Harvey
	Stipulations - Tab 7 - CPS - Scott Roundebush
	Stipulations - Tab 8 - CPS - Sipcam Agro USA Inc.
	Stipulations - Tab 9 - CPS - U.S. Applicators
	Stipulations - Tab 10 - CPS - Natalie Wheeler
	Consent - CPS - Pipeline Maintenance Service
	Emergency Rules - CPS



